AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
Meeting Room and Office — 191 San Miguel Street, Avila Beach
Telephone (805) 595-2664 FAX (805) 595-7623
E-Mail avilacsd@gmail.com

AGENDA

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
7:00 pm Tuesday, August 8th, 2017
BOARD MEETING LOCATION
AVILA BEACH CIVIC ASSOCIATION
191 SAN MIGUEL STREET
AVILA BEACH, CALIFORNIA

CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 P.M.

1. ROLL CALL: Board Members:
Pete Kelley, President
Lynn Helenius, Vice President
Eric DeWeese, Director
Ara Najarian, Director
Kristin Berry, Director

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public wishing to comment or bring forward any items concerning
District operations which do not appear on tonight's agenda may address the Board
now. Please state name and address before addressing the Board and limit presentations
to 3 minutes. State law does not allow Board action on items not appearing on the
agenda.

3. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
Items of District interest which may be placed on later agendas, or where staff needs to

inform Board.

A. County Reports
1. SLO County Sheriff Department
2. CalFire/County Fire Department

B. Reports on Attended Conferences, Meetings, and General Communications of
District Interest



4. CONSENT ITEMS:
These items are approved with one motion. Directors may briefly discuss any item, or
may pull any item, which is then added to the business agenda.

Minutes of July11®, 2017 Regular Meeting
Monthly Financial Review

General Manager and District Engineer Report
Water and Wastewater Superintendent Report

oSawp

3. DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS
At this time, items pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda, if any, will be heard.

6. BUSINESS ITEMS: Items where Board action is called for.

A. Brown Act Workshop at Port San Luis Harbor District
(Action Required: Receive Report, Provide Direction to Staff)

B. Award Contract for Water Tank #1 Maintenance
(Action Required: Receive Report, Provide Direction to Staff regarding retaining
Advantage Technical Services)

C. Purchase of Back-Up Power Generator for First Street Lift Station
(Action Required: Receive Report, Provide Direction to Staff Regarding Purchase of
Back-up Generator)

D. Consider Adoption of District Financial Reserve Policy
(Action Required: Receive Report and Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2017-09,
adopting a District Reserve Policy)

E. Avila Beach Recycled Water Facilities Plan
(Action Required: Receive Report, Provide Direction to Staff)

% COMMUNICATIONS/ COORESPONDENCE

At this time, any Director or Staff, may ask questions for clarification, make any announcements, or report
briefly on any activities or suggest items for future agendas.

8. Adjourn to next regularly scheduled meeting on Sept 12, 2017

Any writing or document pertaining to an open session item on this agenda which is distributed to a majority of the Board after the
posting of this agenda will be available for public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed. The writing or document
will be available for public review in the District Administration Office, 191 San Miguel Street, Avila Beach, CA during normal business hours.
Consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act and California Government Code Section 54954.2 requests for disability related modification
or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by a person with a disability who requires the modification or
accommodation in order to participate at the above referenced public meeting by contacting the District at 805-595-2664.



1.

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
July 11th, 2017

CALL TO ORDER

President Pete Kelley called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community
Services District, to order at 7:00 p.m. on the above date, in the Avila Beach Civic Center.

2. ROLL CALL
Board Members Present: Pete Kelley
Lynn Helenius
Eric DeWeese
Ara Najarian
Staff Present: Brad Hagemann, General Manager and District Engineer

Kristi Dibbern, Accounting Clerk
Mike Seitz, Legal Counsel
Carinna Butler, Operations Manager FRM

Kristin Berry took the oath of office and joined the Director’s table.

3

4.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

County Reports

1. SLO Sheriff:

Sheriff Voge reported 59 calls for service including 2 assaults with deadly weapons, 0 burglaries
at Bob Jones trailhead, and 3 disturbing the peace. Gang graffiti occurred at the east end of the
beach. Four gang members and one female victim were involved at a confrontation at the Park
Restrooms. The female victim was hospitalized for head injuries. The gang members had warrants
for their arrests and were apprehended by the highway patrol later that same evening.
Additionally, a Paso Robles resident was beaten near the fire pits in Avila after being accused of
stealing a backpack. Other incidents included a man slashing four tires and a drowning incident.
A thirty five year old man apparently fell overboard, while kayaking with friends. The County
rescue dive team was not able to locate the body due to deep waters.

2. Cal Fire Report:
Cal Fire Battalion Chief Paul Lee was unable to attend the meeting due to local fires.

B. Reports on Conferences, Meetings and General Communications

GM Hagemann reminded the Board members to complete their ethics training. The California Special
District’s Association (CSDA) training office has created individual logins and passwords for each board
member and sent them an email with instructions. Directors should turn in their Certificates of
Completion into the District office for our official files. The San Luis Obispo local chapter of the



Avila Beach CSD
Board of Directors Meeting
DRAFT Minutes July 11th, 2017

California Special District Association is hosting an event on July 27™ at Tooth & Nail Winery in Paso
Robles from 3:30 — 5:30pm.

The Port of San Luis Harbor District will be hosting a Brown Act Seminar on August 30. Information is
included in the Board Packet. Please let Kristi Dibbern know if you will be attending.

5. CONSENT ITEMS

President Kelley introduced the consent items and inquired if any member of the Board or public
wished to address any items.

Minutes of June 13th, 2017 Regular Meeting

Monthly Financial Review for June

General Manager and District Engineer Report

Capital Projects Status Report

Water and Wastewater Superintendent Report June Report

moua®mp>

Director Helenius made the motion to adopt the consent items. Director DeWeese seconded the motion
and it passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Lynn Helenius
Eric DeWeese
Ara Najarian
Pete Kelley
Kristin Berry

NOES: None

6. DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS.
None

7. BUSINESS ITEMS: Items where Board action is called for.

A. Award Contract for Water Valve Replacement Project, CIP #W-2017/18 - 2

GM Hagemann introduced the item and summarized the Staff Report. He stated this year’s approved
Capital Improvement Program budget includes $100,000 for replacement of non-operational water valves
and meters. The Board retained MKN & Associates to prepare plans and specifications for the project
and staff advertised and circulated the project to experienced contractors. Staff received bids from two
firms and after a thorough review, staff determined Brough Construction Inc. of Arroyo Grande, was the
apparent low bidder. Hagemann stated Brough Construction has extensive experience in the utility
industry and he is confident they can do a good job. Director Kelley made the motion to award the

Page 2 of §



Avila Beach CSD
Board of Directors Meeting
DRAFT Minutes July 11th, 2017

contract for replacing the water valves to Brough Construction. Director Najarian seconded the motion
and it passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Pete Kelley
Ara Najarian
Eric DeWeese
Lynn Helenius
Kiristin Berry

NOES: None

B. Confirm Relocation of District Offices and Associated Lease Agreements

Per the Board’s direction, Staff notified the District’s lessee (Vizdom Software, Inc.), that the Board
intends to re-occupy the premises at 100 San Luis Street at the end of the existing lease (December 31,
2017). Additionally, staff notified the District’s lessor (Avila Beach Civic Association) that, consistent
with the existing lease, the District would like to continue the existing agreement on a month-to-month
basis until the District moves to the 100 San Luis Street property. The purpose of this item is for the
Board to affirm the above decisions and provide any other direction to staff as we move forward with the
transition. Director Kelley made the motion to confirm a move to the Fire Station at 100 San Luis Street
in Avila Beach. Director DeWeese seconded the motion and it passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Pete Kelley
Eric DeWeese
Lynn Helenius
Ara Najarian
Kristin Berry

NOES: None

C. Annual Weed Abatement Program
Director Kelley made the motion to adopt Resolution No. 2017-07 Ordering Abatement on 2 Parcels

listed APNs 076-221-003 & 076-223-018. Director Najarian seconded the motion and it passed with a
roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Pete Kelley
Ara Najarian
Lynn Helenius
Eric DeWeese
Kristin Berry

Page 3 of §



Avila Beach CSD
Board of Directors Meeting
DRAFT Minutes July 11th, 2017

NOES: None

D. Special District Risk Management Authority Board of Directors Election

Director Kelley made the motion to adopt Resolution No. 2017-08 SDRMA Ballot casting District Votes
for the following candidates: Timothy Unruh, Mike Scheafer, David Aranda, Jean Bracy. Director
DeWeese seconded the motion and it passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Pete Kelley
Eric DeWeese
Ara Najarian
Kristin Berry
Lynn Helenius

NOES: None

E. Wastewater Treatment Plant Discharge Permit Renewal

GM Hagemann summarized the staff report and stated that the District’s existing discharge permit was
issued in 2009 and the permits are issued for a 5 (five) year timeframe. However, the Water Board (WB)
can administratively extend the permit provided the discharger files a timely renewal application. Upon
initial review, the draft permit limits and conditions are consistent with the existing permit and does
contain a special provision that would allow the District to discharge brine waste through the ocean outfall
subject to the submission and approval of a Brine Discharge Study. Operations & Compliance staff are
reviewing the draft permit and staff will compile any comments and submit them to the WB by July 21

deadline.

Director Helenius asked if the previously discussed plant upgrades will prevent spills and/or remain in
compliance with the discharge permit. GM Hagemann commented that the Recycled Water Facilities
Planning Study show the District is proactively leading a regional solutions to wastewater reuse and
management.

F. Regular Board Meeting Times.

GM Hagemann commented that Director Najarian requested the Board consider changing the time of the
regular meetings from evening to late morning or early afternoon. Legal Counsel Seitz responded that the
By-Laws would need to be modified if the Board decides to make a permanent change to the meeting
times.

President Kelley expressed his concern with many conflicts in his schedule during daytime hours and
preferred to leave the meetings on Tuesday evenings. Director Najarian thinks daytime meetings might
facilitate more public members attending the meetings.

Page 4 of §



Avila Beach CSD
Board of Directors Meeting
DRAFT Minutes July 11th, 2017

After more discussion, President Kelley made a motion to continue to have the meetings on the second
Tuesday of each month at 7:00 PM until the District office moves to the former Fire Station. Director
DeWeese seconded the motion and it passed with a roll call vote 5-0. Staff was directed to bring this item
back for further consideration after the move.

AYES: Pete Kelley
Eric DeWeese
Lynn Helenius
Kristin Berry

NOES: Ara Najarian

8. COMMUNICATIONS:
ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 p.m.

The next regular meeting of the Avila Beach Community Services District is scheduled for Tuesday,
August 8th, 2017 at 7:00 pm.

These minutes are not official nor a permanent part of the records until approved by the Board of
Directors at their next meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Brad Hagemann, PE
General Manager

Page S of §






AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager /7ZD
DATE: August 8" 2017

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Review for July 2017

Recommendation:
Receive and file report.

Overall Monthly Summary

During July the District made deposits in the amount of $99,951.39 and experienced
$190,567.57 in expenses (cash basis). The deposits by fund and checks by fund are
provided as an attachment to this report. Income in June included $ 7,820.07 in County
tax income and $91,008.09 in monthly water and sewer fees.

Detailed financial reports including a Balance Sheet, Deposits by Fund, Checks by Fund,
as well as, a Profit and Loss Sheet for July are provided for your information.

Utility Service Billing

For the month of July the District billed approximately $101,450.18 in water and sewer
service charges. Customer Rate Assistance amounted in a reduction of billing charges to
the District in the amount of $486.57.

Operation and Maintenance

Staff is also including the Fluid Resource Management (FRM) Statement for June & July
for 2017. Expenses from both statements have been paid.



.
-
.
.
.
.
.
.
B
.
.
.
.
-
.
. r
o
. .
.
.
.
.
.
-
.
.
.
=
.
- -
.
i

a
i
o
. Es
i
i
i i
i
i
a
i
B . =
i i
i i
i i
. i
N e
i i
i
i
i
i
- Ll
i
i
= =
i
i i
I. Ll
i
o
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
.I
5 i
i
n
=
i
a
i
i
S
N
N
i
i i
i
i i
i
- i
i
i i
i
i
i
i
I- Ll
.I
- Ll
i
i i
i i



12:15 PM

08/03/17
Accrual Basis

Avila Beach Community Services District

Profit & Loss
July 2017

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4000 - Income Summary

4010 -
4012 -
4030 -
4090 -
4600 -

Operating Revenue

Solid Waste Franchise Fee
County Taxes

Rental Income

Interest Income

Total 4000 - Income Summary

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees TIB
5200 - Payroll Expenses

Jul 17

91,008.09
2,679.05
7,820.07
3,262.00
5,144.80

109,914.01

109,914.01

109,914.01

194.79

5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay
5012 - Holiday Pay
5014 - Sick Pay
5016 - Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5254 - PERS Co Pd Kathy
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kristi

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense

5260 - Work Comp Insurance
5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.

Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses

6000 - Administrative Overheads

6102 - Accounting

6120 - Dues & Subscriptions
6130 - LAFCo Fees

6135 - Legal

6140 - Office Supplies & Postage
6145 - Public Notices

2,328.00
145.50
121.25
242.50

2,837.25
49.84

600.00

600.00

818.48
297.78

1,116.26

627.38
100.32

5,331.05

3,767.00
155.60
5,176.00
2,052.80
506.75
297.66

Page 1



12:15 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/03/17 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2017

6150 - Rate Assistance
6155 - Rent

6160 - Training

6170 - Website

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads

6500 - Operating Expenses
6503 - Chemicals
6505 - Contract Labor
6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.
6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only
6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint. - Other

Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6525 - Fat Oil & Grease (FOG)
6535 - Insurance

6540 - Lab Tests

6550 - Operating Supplies
6555 - Permits & Fees

6565 - Regulatory Compliance
6567 - Repairs

6580 - Solids Handling

6585 - Telephone / Internet
6590 - Utilities

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses

6800 - Water
6802 - Lopez
6805 - State Water

Total 6800 - Water
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8231 - WW-1 WWTP Upgrade

Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani

8270 - Capital Purchases in Prog Water
8272 - W-2 Water Systm Valve/ Meter

Jul 17

486.57
820.66
-625.00
200.00

12,838.04

5,382.71
28,006.80

364.37
638.45
2,356.66

3,359.48

312.00
1,235.46
2,950.40

399.77

307.70

400.00
8,445.87
2,434.00

541.30
3,368.02

57,143.51

50,551.57
25,335.77

75,887.34

151,394.73

-41,480.72

24,852.63

24,852.63

688.75

Page 2



12:15 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/03/17 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2017
Jul 17
8271 - W-1 Water Tank Improvements 4,130.00
Total 8270 - Capital Purchases in Prog Water 4,818.75
Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses 29,671.38
Total Other Expense 29,671.38
Net Other Income -29,671.38
Net Income -71,152.10

Page 3



12:15 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/03/17 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2017
Jul 31, 17
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - Cash Summary
1005 - Customer Cash 130.45
1008 - Petty Cash 153.52
1010 - Heritage Oaks General Checking 615,896.21
1025 - Pooled Cash 2,671,663.57
1030 - B of A - Payroll 2,775.32
1050 - LAIF 2,239,232.42
1099 - Cash Balance -2,671,663.57
Total 1000 - Cash Summary 2,858,187.92
Total Checking/Savings 2,858,187.92
Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable 210,328.79
Total Accounts Receivable 210,328.79
Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable 3,019.76
1270 - Taxes Receivable 8,787.45
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings 121,045.60
Total 1250 - Receivables 132,852.81
1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 - Prepaid Insurance 12,508.88
Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary 12,508.88
Total Other Current Assets 145,361.69
Total Current Assets 3,213,878.40
FiXed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012 8,233.58
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr -6,861.31
Total 1605 - Office Equipment 1,372.27
1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost 4 526.21
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep. -4,526.21




12:15 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/03/17 Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2017

Accrual Basis

Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.

1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land

1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost
1628 - Collect Assets Accum Depr

Total 1626 - Collection Assets

1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 - Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum Depr
1642 - Treatment Equipment - Other

Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr

Total 1652 - Equipment

1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr

Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water

1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA
1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep

Jul 31, 17

0.00

60,314.10

1,318,875.26
-352,639.07

966,236.19

523,122.64
-264,042.83

259,079.81

105,000.00
1,909,250.75
-886,106.88

1,128,143.87

1,000,455.00
-524,698.87
205,485.61

681,241.74

3,095,015.71

21,136.28
-21,136.28

0.00

1,109,466.00
-562,263.35

547,202.65

547,202.65

29,810.00
-29,810.00

Page 2



12:15 PM Avila Beach Community Services District
08/03/17 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31,2017

Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1690 - Construction in Progress
Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2260 - Vacation Payable
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued
2240 - Health Insurance
2241 - Employee

Total 2240 - Health Insurance
Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities

2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held
2304 - Fire Station Deposit
2305 - Capacity Fees Held

Total 2300 - Deposits Held
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Long Term Liabilities

Jul 31, 17

0.00
17,812.74

3,661,403.37

3,661,403.37

7,850.00

7,850.00

6,883,131.77

78,340.71

78,340.71

1,236.90
2,194.50

0.01

0.01

3,431.41

7,680.00
2,000.00
252,907.16

262,587.16

266,018.57

344,359.28

115,049.00
15,115.00

130,164.00

Page 3



12:15 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/03/17
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of July 31,2017

Total Liabilities

Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Jul 31, 17

474,523.28

6,479,760.59
-71,152.10

6,408,608.49

6,883,131.77

Page 4



| abed

67605 v L- 000 “ausn) syeQ abelieH - 0101 WEN oA 2102/0}/20 usode(
67'60S V|- 12’8 “auan) syeQ abewiaH - 0101 90UE]SISSY 8ley 2102/04/20 usode(
92 LISV L- 95'6.£8- “ausn syeQ abeiusH - 0101 o8y lues 2102/04/20 usode(
02'8E}'9- 8G'801- "ausn syeQ abejisH - 0101 XV1 dOY"d ILSVYM - IA 2L INNAr 401 2102/01/20 usodeQ
29'62.'S- 2e - “rausn) syeQ abeiisH - 010} 2 18yi0 2/t 2102/60/20 usode(
0£'889°G- 000 “auan syeQ abeyieH - 0101 L Jauyl0 2/1 £102/60/20 usode(
0£'889°G- 85 L1 "auan syeQ abelisH - 0101 aouejsIssy ajey 2102/60/20 usodaQ
88'669°G- 2EEv6- "ausn) syeQ abelisH - 0101 o8y lues £102/60/20 usodeQ
95°95/ ‘- 000 “auan syeQ abelisH - 0101 2 Jayi0 g/t 2102/20/20 usodeQ
95°9G/ ‘- 000 "ausn) syeQ abelisH - 0101 L J8yl0 g/t 2102/20/20 usodeq
95°9G/ ‘- 000 "auan) syeQ abelssH - 0101 80UEISISSY aley 2102/20/20 usodeQ
95°9G/‘v- 8¢ L¥9- “auan syeQ abeyisH - 0101 o8y lueg 2102/20/20 usodeQ
8L'GLLY- 000 "ausn syeQ ebelsH - 0101 2 18yi0 2/t 2102/90/20 usode(
8L'GLLY- 00°0S ""ausy syeQ abelteH - 010} I 18U10 /1 £102/90/20 usode(
81°G9L ‘- 128 "auan) syeQ abelisH - 0101 aouelSISSY 8jey 2102/90/20 usodaq
SPELLY- 20'60% 1- "ausy) syeQ ebewsH - 010} o8y Iues 2102/90/20 usode(
ev'v9.'2- LSS "ausn syeQ abejisH - 0101 g8yl g/t £102/S0/20 usodaQ
09'618'2- 000 "ausp) syeQ ebelisH - 0101 }Jayl0 2/t £102/50/20 usodeQ
09'618'2- 0299 "ausp syeQ abejsH - 0101 90UR)SISSY 8leY 2102/50/20 usodaQ
08'688'2- 08'688'2- "ausn syeQ abelisH - 0101 o8y lues £102/50/20 usodeQ

Aieyueg

29v61- 296 1- sy617 elo L
296 |- 9/'/E}- "ausn syeQ abejisH - 010} GO' sybI ‘Gg JeleM ‘02" UeD - | # dINI - 0920 W S680 : 2102/92/.0 usodaq
98°95- 19'9¢- "ausy syeQ abeitsH - 010} GO' sbIT ‘Gg 181 M ‘0L UeD - | # dINI - 0920 Y S680 : 2102/€4/20 usodaQ
61°02- 61°02- “ausn syeQ abelisH - 0101 GO' sWbIT ‘Gg 18l M ‘0L U8 - | # dINI - I 21 ANNF 401 2102/0}/20 H_wmoamo

syb1

68'+£0'8- 68'¥£0°'8- ulwpy / [eJausy) [ejo |
68'+£0‘8- 69'826° |- "auan syeQ abelseH - 0101 GO  SIBIT ‘G2 18l ‘0L  ueD - | # NI - 0920 V S680 : 2102/92/.20 usode(
02'90}+'9- 00°G2Z- “auan) syeQ abelsH - 0101 100€ yse) wouy 2102/S2/.0 usoda(
02’ 18€'G- 00°629- “ausn syeQ abeyseH - 0101 90UBIBJU0YD N peIg Juswesinquiay £102/02/.L0 usoda(
02'95.'V- IY'ELG- "auan syeQ abelsH - 0101 GO SWbIT ‘Gg" JeleM ‘02" UBD - | # JINI - 0920 V G680 i L102/E€4/20 usode(
6.2V - 00°002- “auan) syeQ abeieH - 0101 1008 Yse) wouy 2102/04/20 usode(
61°2v0't- 00°005- “ausn) syeQ abelieH - 0101 1008 Yse) wouy 2102/04/20 usode(
6.°2vS‘e- 00°092'¢- “rauan syeQ abelisH - 0101 8woou| [ejusy 2102/04/20 usode(
6.'282- 6.°282- “auan) syeQ abesH - 0101 S0" sIBIM ‘Gg 1ereM ‘02" ueD - | # JINI - IW 2L INNF 401 2102/04/20 usode(

ulwpy / [esduan

aouejeq junowyy uids owd aleq adA

2102 AInp

pung Aq syisodaq L1/€0/80

1011SI1@ S99IAI9S Alunwwo) yoeag ejiny



2 obed

¥1°899°8¢- 000 "ausn) syeQ abeltsH - 010} I Jayl0 2/t 2102/v2/20 usodeQ
¥1°899'8¢- /2’8 "auan syeQ abelseH - 0101 aouelsISsy aley 2102/¥2/.0 usodaQ
1¥°929'8€E- 88°02Z- "ausn syeQ abewsH - 010} o8y Iues 2102/¥2/L0 usodeQ
€6°G06'L8- 16" LY “ausn syeQ abeplsH - 010} g 18yi0 g/t 2102/02/.0 usodeq
Yy L6 L8- 000 "ausn) syeQ abellsH - 010} I Jayl0 2/t ,102/02/20 usode(
vy Lv6 LE- 12’8 "ausn) syeQ abeitsH - 010} souelsIssy ajey £102/02/.0 usodaQ
L/ GG6'LE- 06°L12'2- “auan) syeQ abewieH - 0101 o8y lueg 1102/02/L0 usodeQ
18°2€2'0€- IS'6E L "ausn) syeQ abelisH - 0101 Z2layo 2/t 2102/64/L0 usodaQ
2e'218'0¢- 000 "auan) syeQ abejisH - 0101 I 18U10 /1 2102/64/L0 usodeQ
2e°2.8'0¢- 128 ""ausy) syeQ abeeH - 010} aouelsIssy ajey 2102/64/L0 usodeq
65°588°0€- 6£°620'2- “ausn) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 o8Y Ilues 2102/64/20 usodeQ
02'958'82- 02'89- yseD Jawoisny - GO0} 2 18U10 2/t 2102/84/20 usodaQ
00'88.'82- 000 yseD Jawoisny - GO0} L1810 2/} 2102/84/20 usodeQ
00'88.'82- 0L'Ee ysen Jawoisng - GO0} aouelsissy sjey L102/81/20 usodeQ
0l°128'82- 09'tv2e- yseD Jawoisng - GO0 o8y Ilueg 2102/8}/20 usodeQ
05'965'82- €20} “auan) syeQ abeyseH - 0101 L1/22/9 - 92/S woodisey yled Anunwwo) 291000 - LI/E1/2 HOV 2102/L1/20 usodaQ
£2°0,9'62- G0 "ausn) syeQ abelieH - 0101 2laui0 2/t 2102/21/20 usodaQ
88'0.9'62- 000 "ausn) syeQ abelssH - 0101 }Jayl0 2/t 2102/L}/20 usodeQ
88°0.9'62- 000 "auan syeQ abewieH - 0101 souelsIssy ajey 2102/L1/20 usodaQ
88°0.9'62- GE'66€°G- "auan) syeQ abeyseH - 0101 o8y lues 2102/L1/20 usodeQ
€5 122've- 000 "ausn) syeQ abeitsH - 010} ZJ8yl0 2/t 2102/9}/20 usodaQ
€S 122've- 000 “auan syeQ abewisH - 0101 I 18ul0 2/t 2102/9}/20 usodaQ
€5 122 ve- 000 "auan) syeQ abelisH - 0101 souelsIssy ajey 2102/9}/20 usodaQ
€5 1L2've- 0L°GhL- "ausn) syeQ abejsH - 010} o8y Iues 2102/9}/20 usodeQ
£8'GStve- €2 ¥20°L- ""ausy) syeQ abessH - 010} L1/22/9 - 92/S woonssy led Ayunwwo) 91000 L102/€1/20 usodeQ
09°180‘€2- 2902 “ausn) syeQ abeieH - 0101 g 18yi0 2/t L102/€4/20 usodeQ
geeol'ee- 000 auan) syeQ abewisH - 0101 | 18Ul10 2/t 2102/€4/L0 usodeq
ggeol'ee- 000 “ausn) syeQ abeiueH - 0101 aouelsIssy aley L102/EV/L0 usodeQ
ggeol'se- GS'€2L'C- “rausn) syeQ abeilsH - 010t o8y Ilues L102/€4/20 usodaQ
198/€'02- 12 \WL- “auap) syeQ abeisH - 0101 XV1 d3dNd3S °YND - 0920 1V S680 i L102/E1/20 usodeQ
Ov" 2E9'61- L0 “ausn) syeQ abeilsH - 010} 2 8yio g/t ,102/21/L0 usodeQ
.G LE9°6)- 000 “rausn) syeQ abeilsH - 0101 I 1au10 /1 2102/2}/20 usodaQ
1S /89'6}- 0L'ee “auan) syeQ abeyseH - 0101 8ouelsIssy aley 2102/24/L0 usodeQ
19°0/9'6}- v1'€29'e- "ausn) syeQ abeisH - 0101 o8Y Ilues 2102/2}4/20 usodeq
€5 /v0'L}- GG'Z- “auan) syeQ abelsH - 0101 2 18ui0 /1 2102/L /20 usodaQ
86'6S0°LL- 000 "ausn syeQ abeilsH - 0101 L 18Yl0 2/ 2102/+H/20 usodeQ
86'6E0°L}- LS "ausn syeQ abewsH - 010} 90UB)SISSY 8leY 2102/+1/20 usodeQ
GE 180 LI- 98’1252 “auan) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 o8y lues 2102/+1/20 usodeQ
67'60S v |- 000 "auan) syeQ abelsH - 0101 AL RAN 2102/0}/20 usodaQ
aouejeqg unowyy yds owd aleq adA )
2102 Ainp
pung Aq susodaqg L1/€0/80

1011)S1@ S@9IAI9S AJluNWWwo) yoeag ejIny



¢ abeyg

ELYGL Y- 000 ausn) syeQ abelusH - 0101 I J8y10 2/} £102/60/20 usodeQ
EL'vSL p- 65 L1 “ausn) syeQ abeiusH - 010t souelsIssy ajey 2102/60/20 usodeQ
2.°59.'v- 80°}16- “"ausn) syeQ abeyisH - 010} oay Jalepn /102/60/20 usode(g
¥9°v58'¢c- 000 “ausn) syeQ abeilsH - 010} g8yl g/t 2102/20/L0 usode(
¥9'¥58°¢c- 000 “"ausn) syeQ abejusH - 010} I dayl0 2/1 2102/20/20 usoda(
¥9'¥58'¢c- 000 “rausy) syeQ abeilaH - 0101 80ue)sISsy ajey ,102/20/20 usodeQ
9" ¥58'¢c- Sy L1E- auan) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 o8y Jalep 2102/20/20 usoda(
61°2£5'¢c- 000 “rausn) syeQ abeisH - 0101 Z218ul0 2/t £102/90/20 usodaQ
61°26G'c- 00°0S “rausy) syeQ abeilsH - 0101 WETTo Rt 2102/90/20 usoda(
61°285'¢- 82’8 "ausn) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 soue)sissy ajey £102/90/20 usodaQ
L¥'S65'E- 95" 181 }- ""ausn) syeQ abewtsH - 010} o8y Jo1e M\ £102/90/20 usodeQ
I6'CLy e- L0'0- "auan syeQ abeyieH - 0101 180 30 10" + Auiag uaisiy 2102/50/20 usode(
06°ELY'e- 81°GS "auan syeQ abelieH - 0101 2 18yl0 2/t 2102/50/20 usodaQ
80'69%'2- 000 "auan syeQ abelisH - 0101 I dayl0 2/ 2102/50/20 usodeq
80°69%'2- 0299 "auan) syeQ abelieH - 0101 souelsIssy aley 2102/S0/.0 usodaq
82°6eS‘e- 82'6eS'e- "auan) syeQ abewisH - 0101 o8y Jole 2102/50/20 ysodeQ

J91ep\

S0'6.9'e- G0'6.9°¢c- 3ISEM\ PIIOS [e10 |
506192 €V'€80°1- “ausn) syeQ abeiusH - 0101 MS 884 8slydouel4 sSuonosuuo) a1sep L 10z A 2012-9 2102/52/.20 usodaQ
Nw.mmm_ L- N@.mmm. 1= 'auen) syeQ mm.mu_._mI -0LOL >>w 994 8siyouel w:ozomccoO BI1SeM 2102 >m_>_ 1012-G N_.ON\F _.\NO H_moamh_

a1seM pilos

' eLe'vy- g eLE V- Alenueg |ejo |
2y ELE Y- 000 “ausy) syeQ abejusH - 010t 2 J8ul0 g/t 2102/1€/20 usode(
Y ELE Y- 000 “rauan) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 I 18U10 2/1 2102/18/20 usodeQ
2V eLE vh- 000 “ausn) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 80ue)sISsy aley 2102/1€/20 usode(
gy eLE V- oLe- “rausn) syeQ abeilsH - 0101 o8y lueg 2102/1€/20 usodeQ
2e 0.8 vP- 000 “ausn) syeQ abeilsH - 010t Z2J8ul0 2/t 2102/1€/20 usodeQ
2e 0.8 vP- 000 “ausn) syeQ abeieH - 0101 WETT R 2102/1€/20 usode(
2e 0L vh- 000 “ausy syeQ abeitsH - 0101 80UE]SISSY aley 2102/1€/20 usodeQ
2e0LE Y- 12°2ve- “auan) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 o8y lueg 2102/1€/20 usodeQ
G0'820 V- €5°1..°2- “ausn syeQ abewisH - 0101 XVL dO"d - ILSVM - v JA + Ad 401 2102/92/.0 usodeQ
25052 Lv- 88'¢- “ausn) syeQ abewisH - 0101 2 18yi0 z/1 2102/52/.0 usoda(
v9° L¥2 Lb- 000 “auan syeQ abeieH - 0101 WET TR 2102/S2/.0 usodeQ
T WAA z8ve “ausn) syeQ abelisH - 0101 aouelsIssy ajey ,102/S2/.0 usodeQ
9v'gLe Lv- £€5°025°2- “ausn) syeQ abelisH - 0101 08y lues 2102/S¢2/.0 usode(
€6°152'8¢- 6.°€8- "auan) syeQ abelseH - 0101 Z2i8ul0 g/t 2102/¥2/.0 usode(

aouejeq junowyy yids owd aleq adA

2102 AInp

pung Aq syusodag L1/€0/80

1011S1g S99IAI9S AHunwwo) yoeag ejiny



t abed

6.°/89'0€- 82’8 “auan) syeQ ebewisH - 010} aouelSISSY 8ley 2102/64/20 usode(
20°969°0€- L1'960°2- "auan) syeQ abewsH - 0101 o8y Jolep\ L102/61/20 usode(
96'665'82- 02'89- yseD Jawoisng - GO0 2 18y10 z/1 2102/84/L0 usodsQ
9/°1£5'82- 000 yseD Jawoisny - GO0+ L dayl0 2/t 2102/81/20 usodaQ
9/'1£G'8e- 0L'€ee yseD Jawoisng - GO0 8ouelsIssy aley 2102/84/L0 usodaQ
98'¥95'82- oz6le- yseD Jawoisng - GO0 o8y Jale M\ 2102/81/20 usode(
99°G¥€'82- ¥9'692 “auan) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 L1/22/9 - 92/S woodisey 3led Anunwwo) 291000 - LI/E1/L HOV 2102/L1/20 usode(
0E'ShL‘6e- 9/°198‘2 “rausn) syeQ abeilsH - 0101 L1/12/9 - 92/G uonebuu| yied uenp ues 229100 - ZL/E1/. HOV 2102/21/20 usode(
90°LL6°L€- 26'S6Y' 1 “ausn) syeQ abeyseH - 0101 L1/22/9 - 92/ uonebuu| 1S o4 €8+ 100 - LL/EL/L HOV 2102/L}/20 usodeQ
86'2Li'CE- G0 “ausn) syeQ abelieH - 0101 2 18y0 2/t 2102/21/20 usodeg
gLelv'ee- 000 “auan) syeQ abelisH - 0101 I 4ayl0 2/t L102/L1/20 usodaq
EL'eLr'ee- 000 "ausn) syeQ abeitsH - 010} |ouelsIssy sjey 2102/L1/20 usodaQ
E1L'E.¥'ee- L1'¥69'8- "auan) syeQ abelisH - 0101 o8y Jate M\ 2102/L}4/20 usodeQ
96'8..'ve- 000 ""ausn) syeQ abeilsH - 010} 2 18yio g/t 2102/91/20 usodeQ
96'8..'ve- 000 ""ausn) syeQ abeitsH - 010t L Jayl0 2/1 2102/94/20 usodaQ
96'82.'ve- 000 "ausn) syeQ abelisH - 0101 80UE]SISSY 8leYy 2102/91/20 usodaQ
96'8..'v2- 0L°GLL- "ausn) syeQ abelisH - 0101 o8y Jo1e M\ 2102/91/20 usodaQ
92'€99'v2- ¥9'69.- ""ausn syeQ abeitsH - 010} L1/22/9 - 92/G woodsey ied Anunwwo) 291000 2102/€1/20 usodaQ
29'€68'ce- 9/°198°2- "ausp syeQ abelisH - 0101 L1/22/9 - 92/G uoneblu| yied uenp ues zz9100 L102/€1/20 usodaQ
98'1€0‘t2- 26'G6Y° - "auan) syeQ ebelisH - 0101 L1/22/9 - 92/ uonebuu| 1S 1uoi4 £8% 100 2102/€1/20 usodaQ
¥6'GEG'61- €902 "'ausy) syeQ abeweH - 010} 2 18yi0 z/k L102/€1/20 usodeQ
/59556 }- 000 “ausn) syeQ abejisH - 0101 I 18UI10 2/}t L102/E1/L0 usodaQ
/G95G'6}- 000 "ausp) syeQ abelsy - 0101 8ouelsIssy arey 2102/€1/20 usode(
/59656 }- 19°198'2- “rausy) syeQ abeiusH - 010t o8y Jale M\ L102/EL/L0 usodaQ
06'¥69'9}- 9e'e81- auen) syeQ abelieH - 0101 GO  sybI ‘Gz Jerep ‘02  ueD - | # NI - 0920 W S680 L102/E1/20 usodeQ
¥S 11G'9)- 810 “auan) syeQ abewiaH - 0101 2 18yi0 /1 2102/24/20 usodsQ
2L L1G'9)- 000 “auen syeQ abeyieH - 0101 L 18Ul10 2/t 2102/2}/20 usodeQ
2L 11G6'9)- 0L'ee “auan) syeQ abelsH - 0101 B0UE)SISSY 8jey L102/21/L0 usodaQ
28 vrS9l- 02'200'2- auan syeQ abeyseH - 0101 o8y Jale M\ 2102/24/20 ysodeQ
2L LES Y )- 95°/- “auen) syeQ abeleH - 0101 2 18yi0 2/t 2102/} 1/20 usodeQ
95625V - 000 "auan) syeQ abeieH - 0101 I J8U10 2/1 2102/} 1/20 usodeQ
95625V - 8E L “auan) syeQ abelisH - 0101 aouelsIssy aley 2102/} 1/20 usodeQ
¥6'0L5V - 08 18G'¢E- “"ausn syeQ abeilsH - 0101 o8y Jote 2102/} 1/20 usodeQ
¥1°686°0L- 000 “auan) syeQ abelseH - 0101 g8yl 2/} 2102/01/20 usode(
¥1°686°04- 000 “auan syeQ abewsH - 010} I 1aul0 2/1 2102/01/20 usoda(
¥1°686°04- 82’8 “auan) syeQ abelisH - 0101 9OUE)SISSY 8leY 2102/04/20 usode(
2y’ 26601- 16°00}'9- “auan syeQ abeyisH - 0101 o8y Jsrep 2102/04/20 usode(
Gv'968‘v- 00" }0}- "ausn) syeQ abelisH - 0101 GO' sWbI ‘Gz 18l M ‘02 U - | # dINI - I L ANNC 401 2102/01/20 usoda(
SP'S6.L Y- 2e - "auan syeQ abeyieH - 0101 A RAN £102/60/20 usoda(
aouejeg unowyy nids owa aleq adA
2102 Ainp
pung Aq syusodaqg L1/£0/80

1011S1@ S991AI9S AHUNWwWo) yoeag ejIny



G abed

6€°156°66- 6€°156°66- Iv1i0oLl
Ly 699 V- I 699 V- 181e\\ |10
L' 699 V- 000 "ausn) syeQ abelisH - 0101 2 18yi0 2/t 2102/1€/20 usodeQ
L' 699 - 000 ""ausn syeQ abeitsH - 010} L J8y10 2/1 2102/1€/20 usodeQ
L' 699'vi- 000 "ausn) syeQ abelisH - 0101 8ouelsIssy aley 2102/1€/20 usodeQ
H7°'699 V- oL'e- "ausn syeQ abejisH - 0101 o8y Jale M\ 2102/+€/20 usode(
1£°999 - 000 “auen) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 2 18yi0 z/k 2102/1€/20 usodeQ
L£°999 - 000 "'ausn) syeQ ebewleH - 010} I 18y10 /1 2102/+€/20 usode(
1£°999 - 000 ausn) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 aouelsIssy ajey 2102/+€/20 usodeQ
1£'999 V- 8z'eve- “"ausp syeQ abejsH - 0101 o8y JaleM 2102/+€/20 usodeQ
£0'v2E - 28'889- “ausn) syeQ abeitsH - 010t GO’ SybIT ‘Gg 81BN ‘02" USD - | # dINI - 0920 :V S680 :d 2102/92/.0 usodeQ
12'SE9‘EY- 88'¢2- "auan) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 g 18yi0 2/t 2102/S¢2/.0 usodeQ
£€°289'eh- 000 “auan) syeQ abeyisH - 0101 I 18U10 2/1 2102/52/.0 usodeQ
££°289'cP- £8've “auen) syeQ abelisH - 0101 8ouBlSISSY aley 2102/S¢2/.0 usodeq
91°259'ch- 25'ese'e- “rausn) syeQ abeilsH - 010} day Jele M\ 2102/S¢/.0 usodeq
¥9°€0€" H- 6.°€8- “ausn) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 218410 2/k 2102/¥2/L0 usodeQ
G862 - 000 “ausn) syeQ abeilsH - 010} I 1au10 2/1L 2102/¥2/.0 usodeQ
G862 L¥- 82’8 "auan) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 souelsissy aley 2102/¥2/.0 usodeQ
€1'822 Iv- 65°2r0° |- “auan) syeQ abelisH - 0101 o8y Jate M\ 2102/¥2/.0 usodeQ
¥5'G8 L 0b- 16 LY “"ausn syeQ abewlsH - 010} 218410 2/1 2102/02/.0 usodeq
S¥°222 0v- 000 “ausn) syeQ abeyieH - 0101 I 18Yl0 2/ 2102/02/.0 usoda(
Sy° 222 0p- 82’8 ""ausn syeQ abellsH - 0101 90UEB)SISSY aley 2102/02/.0 usodeQ
£1°G620%- 9v°/89'6- “"ausn) syeQ abewtsH - 010} o8y Jare M\ 2102/02/.0 usodeQ
12'8¥50¢- 2568k "auan syeQ abeyieH - 0101 2 18yi0 2/} 2102/6}/L0 usodeQ
6.°2890¢- 000 "auan) syeQ abelsH - 0101 I 1aul0 2/1 2102/64/L0 usodeQ
aouejeg unowyy yids owa aleq adA L
2102 Ainp
pung Aq suisodag L1/£0/80

10111S1@ S99IAI9S AHUNWWOo) yoeag ejIny



| abed

GE'v08'S 0v'0S6°2 sise] geT - 0vS9 Bunsa| ge "ou| ‘[eoA[euy 1se0) suoeqy €921 Z102/LL/Z0  398yD
G6'€58'2 002te (904) eseain g 110 184 - G259 950ty "Au| dnoi @de|leAN 2921 Z102/LL/Z0  3o8YyD
G6'LPS‘2 00°S. $994 % SlWIed - 5559 821G "Au| Bunsal mojpjoeg molpoeg IN 1921 Z102/LHLZ0  M98UD
G6'991'2 L2 /SE s[edlwayy - €059 9v€1-210g "Au| S19|qB | dULolYD l00d HDD  1G2L  £102/S0/20  ¥99yD
¥2'601'2 11°66€ sel|ddng BunesadQ - 0559 sHy 1s8] e|dwes Booganig VSN 6vzl  2102/S0/Z0  X98yD
17604t 16'€62"| s|eajwayy - €059 £88/8/¢ I1dg "Au| ‘ou| ‘oyioed Beluuslg  8vglL  Z102/S0/Z0  M08YD
0S'SHp v8LLE - 0659 Jeisdwin@ pA 2 8oInIeg Aleues Aunog yinos  ZpgL 21L02/S0/Z0  M98yD
99'/62 99'262 S82II0N 21laNd - G L9 ¥20.v€ GDOMH emauay Huwiad S3AdN aunqu] weibsjgl  9pgL tow\mo\kw %08uD

Jeliueg

G0'896 G0'896 sybi e1o
50'896 S8'S0P - 0659 /-90959/96.S #109€ SIybIT 1S U014 I89d 1102/v2/L0  N28yD
02295 €216 - 0659 0-29€55 12666 # 100e siybry Auojo) 399d 2102/€0/20  ¥98yD
16°0LY 16°0LY - 0659 €-¥869260690 # 1008 s1ybI] umo | I%9d 2102/€0/20  ¥98yD

sybr

98’ L67'6E 98'L6V'6E ujwpy / [elauax) [ejo |
98'L67'6E 1S°GE sty pd 00 SHAd - 9525 ¥112861000000k # LL/1€/L - 9L/L walsAg swainey seakojdw3 olgnd 1102//2/20  ¥98y)
GE'9GY'6E 9e'G51 Aunger syad - 0sze 711286% 10000001 # LL/LE/L - 9L/L walsAg juswaliey seahojdwy olgnd 2102/22/.0  ¥%98uD
66°00€'6E 81'8¢ nsuy pd 00 SHId - 9525 260.861 1000000 # LL/SL/L - L/L walsAg swalney seakojdwg olgnd 2102/22/20  398yD
18'292'6E $9°GEL Aunger) sH3d - 0see 2602861 1000000 # LL/SL/L - L/L waysAg juswaliiey seahojdw3 olgnd £102/22/.0  ¥98yD
JAVIANGI 000522 logeT 19B1U0D - S059 £10g ‘pugz AIne - yis AInp 26 “Au sejeloossy g uuewsbey  8/gL  ZL02/¥2/0  Mo8yD
L1'21€'9€ 08'eev abeisod @ seyddns o0 - OV 19 LIy 129 Wuswalels seidels 9721 /10g/ve/l0  No8yD
LE'EV6'SE 1E%9¢ “lIAy-jure g "dey “dinb3 - Z2g9 6219LP# "AU| selddng ssauisng [euedeyd  €/21  Z102/te//0 98y
00'6.5‘GE 00919 eba - gel9 luswaoe|dey Jequis|y pieog z)eg g Aesdiys  89zL  Z102/¥2/L0  Mo9YD
00°€96'VE 08'9G6/ ebe - gel9 [emauay Jwiad SIAAN zuag g Aesdiys 89z L 2102/¥2/.0 %93yD
02'902've 00°009 ebeq - ge19 aouepuany g ‘daid Bunsspy z)eg g Aesdiys  89zL  Z102/¥2/L0  Mo8YD
02'909'ce 0008 ebeq - se19 Areiqry men z)es g Aesdiys 8921 Z102/ve/L0  X99YD
02'925‘ee 00°000'2 loge 10BQU0D - G0S9 81//102 84 1BIN ZBH  "IGO SINT UES JO UONBIDOSSY Jalyd all4 /921  ZL02/¥2/.0  Y98uD
02'925‘ 1€ G6'681 1ousalu| / suoydala| - 58G9 12SE£€£008600 1528 "# 100y lapeyn 2102/LH/20  ¥98yD
G2'9ee‘LE 00'S9} Bununoooy - zoL9 Z1/LL/2 6091 ‘Auj Buiyoes ] g Buideexpioog aibug BN~ ¥92L  2L0Z/LL/Z0  Y98YD
GZLLLLE 00°00S‘S 10gE 19BAU0D - GOS9 2102 ‘W AIne - yigg sunp “Au| sejeloossy g uuewsbeH  09ZL  Z102/LL/Z0  %98uD
Se129'se 000 “BlIAY IR B “dey "dib3 - 259 sireday Jondwoo sieindwo) 28] [e) 2102/01/20  ¥98uD
G2 1E9'Ge 96°L5 abeisod @ senddng 8210 - 0719 80IAI8S [B1SOd SN 2102/20/20  ¥98yD
62'€.5'Ge 8v'818 Aurey pd 0D SHId - ¥52S Aurey Aujgel pspunjun wajlsAg swainay seakojdws ogng 2102/G0/20  398yD
18'¥52've S0k 1IsUy pd 0D SH3d - 9525 uleqqig #suy Anligel| pspunjun 9028/8v.291 :dl walsAg juswaliey seshojdw3 olgnd £102/S0/20  ¥%98yD
9/°€52've ¥S'22 suy pd 00 SHAd - 9525 uleqqiq nsUy eunr 9oz8/8v/91 (dl waisAg uswaley seakojdwy algnd 2102/G0/20  398yn
22'9/9'v2 ¥6'562 Aujger sy3ad - osze uIaqqIQ HsKY 8unr 9028.8v.291 dl wailsAg wewainay seskojdw3 ogng £102/S0/20  ¥%98yD
82°08€'ve 667k abejsod % seyddng 800 - OV 19 wo2'8qopy 2102/50/20  ¥98yD
62'S9€'ve 8€'229 8oueInsu| dwo) YoM\ - 0925 80209 # "Au| dWOD }IOA Wniwald dwoD >IOM VINHAS 852t Z108/S0/Z0  o8yd
16°2£2'C2 ov'vrL'El aoueinsu| predald - 0Lyl " L/2102 ebexoed Auqer] Auadoud Aoljod [eieusn folod |eleusn YWHAS  ZS2k  Z102/S0/Z0  X98u)D
St'€66°6 00¢8e‘e Bununoooy - 2019 S8JIAI8S [BUOISSBJ0Id / L0Z Aely dT11‘umoig R yepa4 GGzl ZL0Z/S0/Z0  M98yD
Gr'L199 00°921'S se94 004y - 0E19 L1/G/2 "AU| 81/2) S884 0DV Jajjonuod Joupny 0D O1S €52+ Z102/S0/Z0  o8yD
St'SEP L 00°022 Bununoooy - zo19 21/22/9 $091 “Auj Buiyoes ) ® Buideexpjoog aibug BN  0S2L  2L0Z/S0/20  %99yD
ST 99'028 ey - 5519 /102 sy Ainp uoneldossy JINID yoeed BIIAY - SpZL Z102/S0/Z0  4o8yD
6. '76€ 00°002 BNSQaM - 019 auljwesns asogy Alyuow waw/hoideq renbig 2102/t0/20  398yD
6,761 6L'V61 "84 pJeD 1pai) ueyaIs|y - 00LS 9sid LOLIN predueq 2102/20/20  ¥98yD

ulwpy / [esduan)

aouejeg junowyy junos’92y owapy aweN wnN ajeq adA)
2102 Ainp

SJUN022y/M pung Aq s)23y)H L1/€0/80

1011S1Q S991A18S AjlUNWWOo) yorag BJIAY



2 abed

1G°295°061 1G5°295°061 Iv.iOoL

€2'8.5°/¢2L €2'82G°/2! 181\ 810 |
£2'8/5°/21 90°091 saniiN - 0659 G-9G6E€ 122081 # 1008 jue ] JoTep 3%9d 2102/v2/.0  X98yD
L1181V 221 0822 suonduosgns % sang - 0219 se84 diysiequialy [enuuy S90IMBS punoibiepun  G/ZL Z102/¥2/L0  Mo8yD
1£°0vE 221 026} $884 @ SHWIad - GGG9 uonvdBUU0Y SS0ID 82760 1L0# "ANI UesH 0 O1S vzl L10g/¥e/.0  X98yD
19281221 £€9'258've apesbdn dLMM L-MM - Le28 | Apms Buluueld samijioe Jeyepn pajokosy L-MM 'ou| ‘Buninsuo) swaisAs Jslep 022l L102/v2/20 M98y
¥0°0€€°201 82 1.. e B Jreday uswdinb3l - 0269 “I4 MeaT Jalep) 199118 [anBI UeS 69 #98S5 LA AU ‘ou| ‘Juswoebeuely 8oInosey pINIY S92 ZL02/LL/Z0  Yo8uD
92255101 18'Svv's sireday - 2959 YeaT JB¥e\ [BINET 012 652G LM# AU ‘ou| ‘Juswebeueyy sainoseyY piINi4  S9zF  Z102/LL/Z0  98u)D
68'901'c6 00°0E}'t “noldw| yue] J81eM L-M - 128 TOS 2r6S LD AUl SjuswaAoidw| JUB] J8eAN ‘d'I'D ‘ou| ‘Juawabeuely sainosey piNlY S92 ZL0Z/LL/Z0 Y98y
68'9/6'88 08'00¥'21 10geT 19 U0D - GOS9 ¥86G L4 "Au| sdQ sunp ‘ou| ‘Juswebeuey sonosey pINIY S92L  ZL0Z/LL/Z0  Y98yD
60'9/5'9/ £0'€08'2 1ale/\ @1BIS - 5089 Bullesym N 8 O 81-2102 Ad JolEM B1ElS SHIOM 2liand Ano) 018 652+ Z102/0L/20  98yD
90°€22'€. v.'2£5'22 1ale ) 91BIS - G089 81-2102 Ad JaleM 21BIS SHIOM dlland Awno) 018 9G21  2102/S0/20  98yD
zeore'Ls 15°16505 zadoT - 2089 81-/102 A4 Jalep zado SHIOM 2lland Awno) O1S  ¥SzZk  2102/S0/20  M98yD
52'889 G2'889 /e wishs Jele M 2-M - 228 PYGE ‘AUl Juswade|day sARA J81BM 'd'1'D ‘oossy B AS|UNN [SBYOIN  2SZL  Z102/S0/Z0  Mo8yD

191\

£'625°2e £¥'625'22 Areyueg [elo |
£'62522 16°0S1 18ulBu| / suoydsia] - 58G9 G ¥06 91¥6-S65 GO8 # 1098 181V £102/18/20  X98uD
9v'8/£'22 S9VLL 18uIely| / suoydale] - 5859 0 819 619/-565 S08 # 109€ 181V 2102/1€/20  X98yD
18'€92°22 €179 samnN - 0659 2-8€22EYBEEY #100B UoNEeIS YI 3%9d 2102/v2/20  X98yD
80'66122 ¥€260°2 SOMIN - 06G9 @ PIE 0-9EZYE008EI # 1008 JuB|d JOTep SISBAN 3%9d 2102/¥2/20  X98uD
(7R AN 1928 eIV W B “dey dibg - 259 salddng so0 8lempieH 80y SIBUIN  2/2L  2102/¥e/20  ¥98uD
070102 082/ suonduosgng @ senq - 0z 19 sea4 diysiequialy [enuuy se0IA9S punolBiepun  G/zL Z102/v2/20  o8yDd
12'920'02 0LZ2LL s|eolwey) - €069 £1/62/90 ¥8828/2 1dg "Au| ‘ou| ‘oyloed Bewuuslg  ZzzL 2102/v2/20  M98yD
/1'668'81 oY LvEe slealway) - €069 L1/€1/L 862862 8 L1/9/L 0£86.2 Id9 AU| ‘ou| ‘oyloed Beluueig 1221 Z102/v2/20  o8yD
11°1SS'91 00'S. S99 B SHWIBd - G559 €121/ "Au| Bunsa) mojpjoeg molpoeg IN - 692l Z102/¥2/L0  MP8uD
12°28¥'91 05202} Bulipuey spios - 0859 Z1/L1/20 Buyney e1sep) PIOS 170G ‘AUl oul 'spaads 9921 ZL0Z/¥e/L0  Mo8yD
12'S/8'S1 05°'922° L Buipuey spios - 0859 £1/82/90 Buliney 81sepp pIOS 62695 AU oul 'spaads 99zl ZL0Z/bE/L0  Mo8uD
11°8¥0'7 1 €158 18ulBu| / Buoydsla] - G859 Jaulalu| G880 X # 1ooe 181V 1102/21/20  X98uD
¥0'€96°E | 00'S. soueldwo) Aioienbay - G9g9 HING 210z Aey aredaid 8L6S M “Auj ‘ou| ‘Juswebeueyy sainoseyY piNi4  S9zL  Z1L02/LL/Z0 98y
¥0'888°C | 8€'6.G'} Jurey g Jredey uswdinb3 - 0gs9 dwnd abpn|S pes 9¥8S LM L# AU ‘ou| ‘Juswebeuey soinosey Il S9ZL  ZL0Z/LL/Z0  98yD
99'80€°C} 00°G2E soueldwo) Aloienbay - G9G9 dING Buidwes [enuuy 8185 1 M# "Auj 'ou| ‘Juswabeuey 8oinosey piINl4 G921 Z102/LL/Z0  }P8YD
99'€86°L | 8/'095 “elIAY e g “day "dibg - ygg9 L1/L1/z 8beinQ 1amod 20SS L M# "Auj ‘ou| ‘Juswebeuey 8aInosayY pINj4  S9ZL  Z10Z/LL/Z0 98U
88'2er L1 £5'292 s[ealwsy) - €059 00651V "Au| S[EOIWaYD ‘ou| ‘luswebeuey sainosey piINi4  S9zL  Z102/LL/Z0  o8yD
GE'09L LI 00'9S€‘S 10geT 19eU0D - G059 #8651 "Au| sdQ sunp ‘ou| ‘Juswebeuey eainoseY pINi4  S9ZL  Z1L0Z/LL/Z0 98y

aoueleg unowy 1uno22y owap aweN wnn ajeq adAL
210z Ainp

SJUN022y/M pun4d Aq s)o9y9H L1/€0/80

1011S1g S991A19S Ajunwwo) yoeag ejIny



FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT Statement

2385 Precision Drive
' Arroyo Grande, CA 93420 Date
& www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346

6/30/17

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171
California Certified Small Business #1120142

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

191 San Miguel Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Amount Due Amount Enc.

$49,260.24

Transaction Amount Balance

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint-
06/30/17 |INV #F15984. Orig. Amount $17,756.80. 17,756.80 17,756.80

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FW11001
Water:348AW17001 Add Services water-

04/11/17 |INV #A15704. Orig. Amount $182.74, 182.74 17,939.54
05/17/17 |INV #A15821. Orig. Amount $147.81. 147.81 18,087.35
06/13/17 |[INV #A15900. Orig. Amount $262.53. 262.53 18,349.88

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FWW11001
Wastewater:348AWW17002 Add Services Wastewater-
05/17/17 INV #A15822. Orig. Amount $1,455.53. 1,455.53 19,805.41

QB17-0058 Solar Bee Installation-
06/15/17 |[INV #C15942. Orig. Amount $4,130.00. 4,130.00 23,935.41

W15253 WW-2 Effluent Line Repair-
03/31/47 |INV #W15253-3. Orig. Amount $50,623.50. 10,623.50 34,558.91

W15482 Recirculation Pump 2 Hour Meter Re-
05/22/17 INV #W15482. Orig. Amount $190.90. 190.90 34,749.81

W15507 Power Outage-
06/28/17 INV #W15507. Orig. Amount $560.78. 560.78 35,310.59

W15525 Power Outage-
05/26/17 INV #W15525. Orig. Amount $1,350.71. 1,350.71 36,661.30

61-90 DAYS PAST OVER 90 DAYS
DUE PAST DUE

31-60 DAYS PAST
DUE

1-30 DAYS PAST
DUE

CURRENT Amount Due

10,623.50 $49,260.24

34,796.00 3,658.00

Page 1



FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT Statement
& 2385 Precision Drive

*Arroyo Grande, CA 93420 Date
- www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346

6/30/17

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171
California Certified Small Business #1120142

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

191 San Miguel Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Amount Due Amount Enc.

$49,260.24

Transaction Amount Balance

W15532 Temp Pump Controller Install-
05/22/17 |[INV #W15532. Orig. Amount $513.05. 513.05 37,174.35

W15721 Prepare DMR Report for March 2017-
05/31/17 |INV #W15721. Orig. Amount $50.00. 50.00 37,224 .35

W15759 210 Laurel Lane Water Leak-
06/29/17 INV #W15759. Orig. Amount $8,445.87. 8,445.87 45,670.22

W15796 Sludge Testing for Liberty Hauling-
05/31/17 |INV #W15796. Orig. Amount $75.00. 75.00 45,745.22

W15814 DMR Reporting for April 2017-
05/31/17 |INV #W15814. Orig. Amount $100.00. 100.00 45,845.22

W15818 Prepare 2017 Annual Sampling DMR-
06/29/17 |INV #W15818. Orig. Amount $325.00. 325.00 46,170.22

W15825 Respond to Power Qutage-
05/31/17 |[INV #W15825. Orig. Amount $329.18. 329.18 46,499.40

W15846 Sec Sed Pumps-
06/29/17 |INV #W15846. Orig. Amount $1,579.38. 1,579.38 48,078.78

W15864 Firesprinkler leak 69 San Miguel-
06/30/17 [INV #W15864. Orig. Amount $777.28. 777.28 48,856.06

W15918 Prepare May 2017 DMR-
INV #W15918. Orig. Amount $75.00. 75.00 48,931.06

1-30 DAYS PAST 31-60 DAYS PAST = 61-90 DAYS PAST OVER 90 DAYS
DUE DUE DUE PAST DUE

06/29/17
CURRENT

Amount Due

10,623.50

$49,260.24

34,796.00 3,658.00

Page 2



FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT Statement

2385 Precision Drive
' Arroyo Grande, CA 93420 Date
| www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346

6/30/17

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171

California Certified Small Business #1120142
To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.O. Box 309

191 San Miguel Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

Amount Due Amount Enc.

$49,260.24

Transaction

Amount Balance

W15926 Low Chlorine Alarm-

06/29/17 |INV #W15926. Orig. Amount $329.18. 329.18 49,260.24

CURRENT 1-30 DAYS PAST 31-60 DAYS PAST

61-90 DAYS PAST OVER 90 DAYS
DUE DUE

DUE PAST DUE

Amount Due

34,796.00 3,658.00

10,623.50

$49,260.24

Page 3






FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
- 2385 Precision Drive

> Arroyo Grande, CA 93420

he/ Www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

191 San Miguel Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Transaction

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint-
07/30/17 |INV #F16095. Orig. Amount $17,756.80.

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FW11001
Water:348AW17001 Add Services water-
07/12/17 INV #A16018. Orig. Amount $1,460.28.

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FWW11001
Wastewater:348AWW217002 Add Services Wastewater-
07/12/17 INV #A16019. Orig. Amount $562.95.

W15253 WW-2 Effluent Line Repair-
03/31/17 INV #W15253-3. Orig. Amount $50,623.50.

W15482 Recirculation Pump 2 Hour Meter Re-
05/22/17 |INV #W15482. Orig. Amount $190.90.

W15633 Influent Pumps VFD Install-
07/21/47 |INV #W15633. Orig. Amount $8,177.31.

W15867 Wet Well High Level Alarm 5/28/17-
07/21/17 |INV #W15867. Orig. Amount $232.18.

W15896 PID Loop-
07/21/17 |INV #W15896. Orig. Amount $1,908.18.

W15926 Low Chlorine Alarm-
INV #W15926. Orig. Amount $329.18.
1-30 DAYS PAST

06/29/17
CURRENT

DUE DUE

Statement

7/31/17

California Certified Small Business #1120142

Amount Due

Amount Enc.

31-60 DAYS PAST = 61-90 DAYS PAST

$42,060.09

Amount

17,756.80

1,460.28

562.95

10,432.60

190.90

8,177.31

232.18

1,908.18

329.18
OVER 90 DAYS
PAST DUE

31,107.41

10,432.60

Balance

17,756.80

19,217.08

19,780.03

30,212.63

30,403.53

38,580.84

38,813.02

40,721.20

41,050.38

Amount Due

$42,060.09

Page 1




FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT Statement
2385 Precision Drive
. Arroyo Grande, CA 93420

' www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346

Date
7/31/17

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171
California Certified Small Business #1120142

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.O. Box 309

191 San Miguel Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Amount Due Amount Enc.

$42,060.09

Transaction Amount Balance

W15960 Supernate Cleaning-
07/14/17 [INV #W15960. Orig. Amount $448.10. 448.10 41,498.48

W16033 Wet Well High Level Alarm 7/02/201-
07/21/17 |INV #W16033. Orig. Amount $110.93. 110.93 41,609.41

W16043 Internet Connection Issue-
07/21/17 INV #W16043. Orig. Amount $450.68. 450.68 42,060.09

CURRENT 1-30 DAYS PAST 31-60 DAYS PAST  61-90 DAYS PAST OVER 90 DAYS AnicubtDue
DUE DUE DUE PAST DUE

31,107.41

10,432.60 $42,060.09

Page 2



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

ME MORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manage,
DATE: August 8th, 2017

SUBJECT:  General Manager/District Engineer Report

Painting First Street Lift Station Pump House

Staff is happy to report that the First Street Lift Pump House has recently received new door hardware that
will provide better security and a fresh coat of paint. Staff retained a San Luis Obispo based painting
contractor “Under the Sun Painting” who was working in the area, to pressure wash, scrape and sand the
door and trim, apply caulking where needed and apply 2 coats of paint (3 coats on the door). The work was
completed and inspected on Tuesday August 1.

Zone 3 Technical and Advisory Committee Meetings

The Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) met on Thursday, August 3, 2017, at the Arroyo Grande
City Hall. The Agenda for the TAC meeting and the meeting notes from the July 6 TAC meeting are
provided as an attachment to this report. As of this writing Lopez Lake is at an elevation of 496 feet, 59%
capacity and has approximately 29,000 acre feet of water in storage (800 AF less than a month ago). The
Zone 3 sub-contractors have initiated a series of meetings to discuss potential changes to the existing Lopez
Water Project Contract. Staff will keep the Board apprised of any proposed changes.

Water Valve Replacement Project
Staff has issued the “Notice of Award™ to Brough Construction for Water Valve Replacement Project. The

Contractor is providing the necessary insurance and bond paperwork and staff anticipates work will begin on
or about August 9 and will be completed by the end of August. Sections of the water distribution system will
shut down for 2 — 4 hours during the day and the contractor will provide at least 24 hour notice of the

shutdown.

FY 2016/17 Audit

Staff from Fedak and Brown conducted their initial audit testing on May 15, 2017. They will be returning on
August 16 and 17 to complete their field auditing work. We anticipate presenting the results of the FY
2016/17 Audit at the October or November 2017 Board meeting.

WWTP Permit Renewal Comment Letter

In accordance with the Regional Water Quality Control Board requirements staff provided the attached
comments on the draft Waste Discharge Requirements Order No. R3-2017-0025. Staff anticipates the
Regional Board staff we review the comments and provide a written response as part of the agenda item it
that will be considered by the Regional Water Board at their September 21, 2017 meeting.




ZONE 3
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Thursday August 3, 2017

9:00-11:00 AM
ARROYO GRANDE CITY HALL
300 BRANCH STREET
2" FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM

Today is National

Watermelon Day!
Agenda
1. Announcements All
2. General Operations and Water Report David
e Monthly Operations Report
e Lopez Dam Storage Projections (two versions)
e Summary Notes/Action Items - July
3. Capital Improvement Project Update David
4. Board Resolution for remaining under LRRP in 17/18 David
e August 22" BOS meeting date
5. ECORPS Contract Change Modeling All
e Discuss Scenarios to be modeled
6. Santa Maria Groundwater Basin Modeling — Funding Dan Heimel/Dave
e Cost sharing Agreement with City of Pismo/and Budget
Adjustment to BOS on September 19th
7. Spillway Assessment Update David
8. Agenda items next month? All

Attachments:
A. Lopez Monthly Operations Report — Distributed at meeting
B. Lopez Reservoir Storage Projections — Distributed at meeting
C. July Summary Notes — Attached with Agenda

Next Meeting September 7, 2017




X ZONE 3
’l TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
» % THURSDAY July 6, 2017 (9:00-11:00 AM)
+* *W SUMMARY NOTES - DRAFT
x ARROYO GRANDE CITY HALL

Attendees: Chris Magdosku (Arroyo Grande), Ben Fine (Pismo Beach), Brandon Shea (Pismo), Greg Ray (Grover Beach), Jim Garing,
Paavo Ogren (OCSD), Brad Hagemann (ABCSD), Vard Ikeda (Ag), Dan Heimel (WSC), Dan Migliazzo (SMMWC), Jill Ogren (PW

Dept), Joe Phillips (PW Dept),

1. Announcements — City of Pismo installing pilot plant at their wastewater treatment plant for RGSP with
tentative August date to be online. City of Pismo job opening for a Regulatory Compliance Coordinator,
open until July 17,

2. General Operations and Water Supply Report
e Lake Elev. = 497.77 ft, Storage = 29.780 AF @ 60.5% capacity; Downstream releases are at 4.5 MGD

(instantaneous reading); WTP at 4.5 MGD; SWP at 1.0 MGD. Water quality is good, treating terminal
reservoir for algae blooms, odor level at 7. pH is about 7.78. City of AG noted a complaint they received
regarding water hardness from a customer, confirmation was given that water from Lopez is hard at this
time.

Storage Projection handout distributed.

Request made for inflow numbers for Lopez Lake, numbers were not pulled from FRM.

Jill Ogren noted on the June Summary Notes, TAC is in favor of including the Wireless Project in 17/18
Budget ($45K) and will probably be funded from savings of O&M or District Designated Reserves.
Noted the new minimum pool as being 1700 AF.

3. Downstream Release Plan for WY 17-18

After the June 1, 2017 TAC meeting, Jill Ogren met with Ag reps, Vard lkeda and Brian Talley, on June
6, 2017 to develop a downstream release schedule for WY 17-18. Downstream releases will be 3,800
AF while reservoir is at 20,000 AF or higher under the LRRP.

160 AF/month is the minimum flow per the IDRS.

Flows will be monitored at Rodriguez Bridge, Halcyon Rd, and 22nd Street during summer months to
ensure flows are not going to the Ocean and that groundwater recharge is maximized.

Ag is returning to normal farming operations prior to drought.

4. Capital Improvement Project Update
The CIP Status report was distributed. PLC Replacement & Programming to begin August 7, 2017 which
will lead to the Membrane Strainer Replacement Project and the 6" Rack Addition with work completing in

~ September. FY 17-18 projects have not been scheduled yet.

e Parking & Roadway Resurfacing — Due to begin in August. Lopez WTP requested work to be done after

strainer install.
Pismo meters installation — Work was not budgeted for in FY17-18 but will be done anyway and billed

to the agency.

City of AG meters will be installed in FY 17-18. Estimated $10,000 — 12,000 per meter for Brisco and
Edna locations.

SCADA project — Waiting for update with IT personnel involved.

Membrane Strainer Replacement and 6" Rack Installation — Plant will be shut down for a week. A
request for a contingency plan to be in place if an issue with state water occurs. Groundwater pumping
may need to be considered as a backup plan. A notice will be sent out a week prior to work taking

place.

5. Draft Board Resolution for Remaining Under LRRP in 17-18
No handout provided. A draft has been prepared, but has not been reviewed by Public Works
Management. The Draft requests authorization for San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water

20f3



Conservation District Zone 3 to continue under the LRRP retroactively from February 8, 2017 until March
31, 2018. TAC weighed in on information to include in draft to the Board of Supervisors for approval.

. ECORPS Contract Modeling Update
e Two handouts provided concerning concepts and alternatives associated with a contract storage

model.

e Discussed defining modeling options and TAC providing ECORPS a direction by the August 3, 2017
TAC meeting, it will also be discussed at the July NCMA meeting. TAC needs to come up with a list of
questions regarding the different options, some will be filtered into ECORPS analysis and others into
separate discussions.

. Santa Maria Groundwater Basin Modeling — Funding Recommendation to Advisory

Committee

Funding recommendation to be taken to Advisory Committee on July 20, 2017. Discussion on last minute

change to the amount of District Designated Reserve Funding requested (~$117,000) per budget changes

with WSC managing the work.

. By-pass Pipeline Testing Update — No access available to video pipeline. Only way to test pipeline
would be to fill with water and pressurize. Per WSC, this will be expensive. Testing the pipeline is not
critical at this point in time and will be placed as a future agenda item.

. Spillway Assessment Presentation — Mark Hutchinson put together a presentation concerning Lopez
Dam'’s spillway assessment. Jill Ogren briefly went over the presentation for TAC. Mark Hutchinson will be
giving a full, detailed presentation at the Zone 3 Advisory Committee meeting on July 20, 2017.

10. Agenda Items Next month —

Next meeting August 3, 2017

Summary Notes Prepared by Jenny Williamson

3of 3



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424
Office and Meeting Room - 191 San Miguel Street, Avila Beach
Telephone (805) 595-2664 FAX (805) 595-7623
E-Mail Avilacsd@gmail.com

July 13, 2017

Ms. Sheila Soderberg
Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board

895 Aerovista Place, Suite 101
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401

Subject: Comments on Draft Waste Discharge Requirement Order No. R3-2017-
0025 , NPDES Permit No. CA0047830, for the Avila Beach Community Services
District (District) Wastewater Treatment Plant

Dear Ms. Soderberg,

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on the Subject draft permit. As
requested the District the posted the Notice of Public Hearing at their Administrative Office
in Avila Beach and published the Notice in the San Luis Tribune on Wednesday June 21. We
have requested the Proof of Publication from the Tribune and we will forward that to you as

Soon as we receive it.

The District’s Comments are as follows:

Order
1. Discharger: The Avila Beach Community Services District is the sole owner of the

wastewater treatment plant. The Port San Luis Harbor District has contracted with the CSD
for a prescribed amount of capacity in the plant. The District has contracted with Fluid
Resource Management for operating and maintaining the wastewater treatment plant through
November 2018. As the sole owner of wastewater treatment plant, the District requests that
the Avila Beach Community Services District be named as the only Discharger on the Permit.

2. We noted that the proposed draft Permit has added effluent limits for copper and zinc.
The District has no objection to those new effluent limits.



3. We noted that Water Board staff added a provision for brine waste disposal through the
ocean outfall. The District appreciates this added provision and will likely prepare a Brine
Waste Disposal Study for a limited amount of brine waste disposal.

4. The first sentence in Paragraph 5.a.viii., on Page 14 appears to be a sentence fragment.

5. Attachment C, Flow Schematic of the Order shows the Sludge Disposal going to the Santa
Paula WWTP. The District is no longer disposing of sludge at Santa Paula. The District has
been hauling sludge to the City of Soledad WWTP and/or Liberty Composting.

Monitoring and Reporting Program (MRP) & Fact Sheet

1. The proposed MRP includes a new requirement to meter Influent and Effluent (daily flow
& maximum daily flow). The District currently only meters and records the effluent flow.
The District requests that they not be required to install an influent flow metering and
recording device (at a cost of $5,000 - $7,500) since the existing effluent monitoring device

provides the same information.

2. The draft permit does not require semiannual chloroform or tributyltin monitoring, but
these constituents are still mentioned in the reporting schedule with the semiannual

report (table E-10 on page E-16).

3. Page F-37 of the Fact Sheet refers to the BOD/TSS removal rate as 85%, although the
main body of the Order at paragraph I1I.A.1.c. (page 7) maintains the BOD/TSS removal at

75%.

4. Fact Sheet, Paragraph VILE.2. (bottom of page F-37) states that “The Order retains the
requirements of the previous permit to conduct pretreatment monitoring and reporting.™
However, the pretreatment monitoring does not appear to be included in the draft MRP. Staff
agrees that continuation of additional pretreatment monitoring may not be appropriate based
on the results of the previous year’s data. The District requests clarification of this issue.

General Comments
1. Recycled Water Facilities Planning Grant — As Board staff knows, the District and the San

Miguelito Mutual Water Company are collaborating on Proposition 13 Water Recycling
Facilities Planning Grant Project. The project agreement was approved by the State Board in
March 2016, for a funding amount of up to $75,000. The District retained Water Systems
Consulting, Inc. to conduct the study and we anticipate the draft report will be completed by
late July or early August, 2017. Staff is optimistic that the report will provide the analysis
and framework for consideration of a regional water recycling project that will minimize the
District’s discharge to the ocean.



2. Chevron Environmental Management Company recently approached the District regarding
the possibility of discharging up to 2,000 gallons per day of extracted and treated
groundwater from the former Avila Tank Terminal to the District’s sewage collection system.
The groundwater cleanup project has historically and, is currently regulated by the Central
Coast Water Board. CEMC is currently trucking the treated groundwater off-site. As you
would expect the treated groundwater contains very little Biochemical Oxygen Demand or
Suspended Solids (less than 10 mg/L) and no coliform. Total dissolved solids (TDS) are on
the order of 11,000 — 12,000 mg/L due to the ocean influence on the extracted water.

CEMC believes disposing of the treated groundwater to the District’s WWTP will reduce
traffic impacts, safety risks, and greenhouse gas emissions associated with trucking the
wastewater off-site. District staff has reviewed the water quality data from the groundwater
cleanup project and all pollutants are well below the proposed permit effluent limitations.
District staff intends to continue the discussion with CEMC including making arrangements
for additional water quality analysis and discharging a 2,000 — 3,000 gallon batch of treated
groundwater to the collection system to determine if the discharge has any negative impacts

on the plant.

District staff does not recommend the proposed Permit be revised in any way to allow the
District to accept this relatively small, but new discharge. We wanted to simply advise Water
Board staff that the District is considering the discharge and would welcome any comments.
Based on input from CEMC staff, District staff anticipates that the discharge will be
temporary in nature (up to 3 years) until the CEMC cleanup project is completed. In
addition, if/when the District moves forward with a water recycling project we would likely
cease accepting the discharge due to the relatively high TDS levels.

Thank you again for the opportunity to comment on the draft order and we look forward to
working with you and the Central Coast Water Board on the Permit renewal.

e

P

LL/ 7 £ x 4’1’{{/—\
rad PLIa((g'emangPE

General Manager






OPERATIONS o MAINTENANCE o MECHANICAL

August 3, 2017

Avila Beach Community Services District
191 San Miguel Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

SUBJECT: JULY 2017 MONTHLY FACILITY REPORT FOR THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, WATER SYSTEM AND COLLECTION SYSTEM

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Areas within the wastewater plant that are known to accumulate solids continue to be manually cleaned on a regular
basis. The Chlorine Contact Chamber floor is vacuumed out on a weekly basis. These solids, if left to decompose, can
have a negative effect on the effluent quality leaving the facility.

The new SCADA computer was installed and the old computer will be used as a backup.

On 4t of July weekend Staff responded to a Wet Well High Level alarm. Upon arrival Staff found flow coming into the
plant at an increased rate causing the wet well level to rise higher than normal.

Staff responded to the SCADA computer being offline due to no Internet. Upon arrival, Staff reset the router; it stayed
on for 20 minutes but then turned off. Internet was not restored until several hours later. Internet reception is starting to
become intermittent/maybe the router is going bad and it is recommended to get AT&T out there to troubleshoot the
router or to get a more stable Internet like Satellite. When the Internet goes out the SCADA system cannot send out
alarms and the SCADA computer cannot be accessed remotely.

Staff responded to a power fail alarm for the Lift Station. Upon arrival Staff started the Honda trash pump to start moving
flow forward and the vacuum truck was mobilized. After further inspection, it was found that the lock on the electrical
panel was missing and someone turned the breaker off. Staff put on a new lock and turned the breaker on. After power
was restored Staff went to the wastewater treatment plant as the influent wet well level was high due to flow being
backed up; Staff stayed until levels had dropped.

The influent wet well had grease and debris removed from it to prevent the pumps plugging. Staff will clean this on an
as needed basis.

WATER SYSTEM

The small water storage tank continues to be used as standby, with FRM Staff monitoring the water quality in the tank
and flushing as needed. FRM Staff continues to monitor the chlorine residuals and shock the system with additional

chlorine as needed.

Staff prepared the lead and copper bottles and letters and passed them out to the residents on the sampling plan.

Page 1 of 2



COMPLIANCE RECORD AND PLANT PERFORMANCE

Plant Design for Influent BOD is 270 mg/L. The permit limit for Effluent TSS and BOD is a Monthly Average of 40 mg/L
with a Daily Maximum of 90 mg/L.

Staff compiled the data to complete the monthly Self-Monitoring Report and Discharge Monitoring Report DMR) in
Central Integrated Water Quality Service (CIWQS). Once approved, the reports are uploaded into CIWQS and certified
by ABCSD Staff.

Sample results for July 30" were not available at the time this report was compiled.

Sincerely,
FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

«

Carinna Butler
Operations Manager

ATTACHMENTS

Self-Monitoring Report

ABCSD Average Daily WWTP Effluent Flow (2015-2017)
ABCSD Monthly Total WWTP Effluent Flow (2015-2017)
Port San Luis Monthly Total Flow (2015-2017)

Monthly Average Influent BOD (2015-2017)

Monthly Average Effluent BOD (2015-2017)

Monthly Water Purchased From Lopez (2015-2017)
ABCSD Monthly Water Sold (2015-2017)

Page 2 of 2



California Regional Water
Quality Control Board,

Central Coast Region

Avila Beach CSD
Wastewater Treatment

DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING
ORDER R3-2009-0055
NPDES CA0047830
WDID 3 400101001

P et Facllity Month: JULY 2017
Effluent and Influent Monitoring
Daily Flow (MGD) Effluent Monitoring Biweekly Biweekly Biweekly Biweekly Monthly
(gpm) | (9PM) | coliform | Coliform | Residual (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (Grab)
1 [0.073131 110 51 <0.02 712117 23 20 420 442
2 |0.082887 139 58 <0.02 716117 17 18 419 220
3 ]0.073159 131 51 <0.02 719117 25 25 591 440
4 10.073162 124 51 2 <2 <0.02 713117 15 16 328 272 2.4 DNQ
5 ]0.051555| 114 41 <0.02 71617 25 22 298 82
6 |0.053626 88 37 <2 <2 <0.02 7120/17 17 15 325 184
7 |0.067966 129 47 <0.02 7123117 22 22 409 572
8 10.075122 116 52 <0.02 7127117 23 24 407 324
9 |0.075254 112 52 <0.02 7130/17
10 |0.059261 100 41 <0.02 Min 15 15 298 82 2.4 DNQ
11 |0.058518 98 41 5 <2 <0.02 Mean 21 20 400 317 2.4DNQ
12 ]0.062911 95 44 <0.02 Max 25 25 591 572 2.4 DNQ
13 ]0.063028 95 44 2 <2 <0.02 BOD Removal: 94.8% TSS Removal: 93.6%
14 ]0.069029| 118 48 <0.02 Effluent Monitoring
15 10.078596 123 55 <0.02 Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly
Date Set. Solids | Turbidity pH Temp °F
16 |0.081972| 110 57 <0.02 (Grab) (Grab) (Grab) (Grab)
17 |0.064783 102 45 <0.02 716117 0.1 30.0 6.7 74
18 ]0.063060 105 44 <2 <2 <0.02 71317 <0.1 13.6 6.7 75
19 |0.062234 94 43 <0.02 7120117 <0.1 17.3 6.6 74
20 |0.061980 102 43 <2 <2 <0.02 7127117 <0.1 29.2 6.6 75
21 0.073050 109 51 <0.02
22 0.084023 112 58 <0.02 Min <0.1 13.6 6.6 74
23 10.077916 114 54 <0.02 Mean <0.1 22,5 6.7 75
24 10.064264 107 44 <0.02 Max 0.1 30.0 6.7 75
25 ]0.065280 101 46 <2 <2 <0.02 Effluent Limits
26 |0.066437 102 46 <0.02 Parameter Units Monthly Avg | Weekly Avg | Daily Max
27 10.065203 123 45 <2 <2 <0.02 BOD mg/L 40 60 90
28 ]0.071600 204 50 <0.02 Suspended Solids mg/L 40 60 90
29 |0.084466 120 59 <0.02 Qil and Grease mg/L 25 40 75
30 [0.079100 117 55 Turbidity NTU 75 100 225
31 ]0.066212 116 46 <0.02 7 Sample Median: 23
Min |0.051555 88 37 <2 <2 <0.02 Total Coliform 1!:(:’:1 More than once in 30 days: 240
Mean|0.069316 114 48 <2 <2 <0.02 Daily Maximum: 2,400
Max |0.084466| 204 59 5 <2 <0.02 Chlorine Residual mg/L 6 Month Median: 0.3 1.2
Total |2.148785| Effluent daily (dry weather) flow NTE 0.2 MGD (mean). pH pH units Between 6.0 - 9.0
Settleable Solids mL/L 1.0 1:5 3.0
Sludge Removal BOD/TSS Removal % 275% iy i
Date Gallons (Est.)
716117 4,500 | certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and accurate and that the sampling procedure and
7/18/17 4,500 analysis used are as specified in the Waste Discharge Order for this facility.
SIGNATURE: DATE:
PRINTED NAME: TITLE:




03da

AON

100

HLNOW

d3s onv anr NAr AVIN ddv HYIN g34 NVl

| Zlozm olozm siozm |

(£10Z - S1L02)
MOT4 LNINT443 dLMM ATIVA IOVIIAY ASIHgV

000°0}

00002

000°0¢

000'0¥

000°0S

000°09

000°02

000°08

AVd ¥3d SNOT1VO




HLNOW

o3a AON 100 d3s onv anr NP AVIN ddv YN g34 NVl

| z1ozm 9lozm siozm |

(21L0Z - 5102)
MOT14 ININ1443 dLMM TVLOL ATHLNOIW dsogv

000°00S

000°000°L

000°00S°L

000°000°C

000°00S°C

HLNOI ¥3d SNOT11VO




HLNOW

03da onv ane NP AVIN ddv dVIN g34 N

AON 100 d3s

| LLozm ol0zm siozm |

(2L0Z - S102)
MO14 TVLOL ATHLNOW SIN1 NVS 130d

000°0S

000°'00L

000°0S}

000°002

000°052

000°00€

000°0S€

SNOTIVO




HLNONW

onvy anr NP AVIN ddv HVYIN 934 Nvr

| uBised diMm=—— /LOzmmm glozmmm GloZmmm |

(2102 - 5L02)
dod IN3N14NI 39VIIAVY ATHLNOW asoHgv

00l

00¢

00€

(0[0)4

00S

009

004

/6w




HLNOW

03da AON 100 d3s onv anr NP AVIN Hdv dVYIN g3 Nvr

Nwi ebelony AeQ Og=—— /|0Zmmm Q|OZmmm  G|0Z mmm

(2102 - 5102)
dod IN3N1443 I9VIIAVY ATHLNOW dsoHgv

ol

Sl

0¢C

14

0¢

G€

ov

14

/6w




HLNON

03d AON 100 d3s onvy anr NP AVIN ddv dVYIN g34 NVl

Ll0cm 9L0Cm GLOZm
L = |

(2L0Z - 5102)
Z3dO1 INOY4 AISVHIUNd ¥ILVM ATHLNOW asoHgy

000°00S

000°000°L

000°00S"L

000°000°C

000°00S'Z

000°000°¢

000°00S°€

SNOT1VO




HLNOW

ony anr NAr AVIN ddv HVYIN g34 NvF

03da AON 100 d3s

| L10zw 9L0zm Glozm |

(21L0Z - 5102)
d10S ¥31VM ATHLNOW aso29v

000'00S

000°000°}

000°00S°L

000°000°C

000°005°

000°000'¢

000°00S'€

SNOT11VO




AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors /
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manage(ﬂi’
DATE: August 8, 2017

SUBJECT:  Brown Act Workshop at Port San Luis Harbor District

Recommendation:
Receive Report and Provide Direction to Staff

Funding:
The cost of the Workshop is $25 per person. The approved FY 2017/18 budget includes more

than adequate funding for Board members to attend the Workshop

Discussion:

The California Special District Association (CSDA), in coordination with the Port San Luis
Harbor District, is sponsoring a half-day Workshop on August 30, 2017, entitled “Understanding
the Brown Act”. The Flyer for the Workshop is attached. This will be a great opportunity for
Board members to get an overview/refresher of the Brown Act and ask questions of the experts.
Please let Kristi if you would like to attend and she will submit the registration form.



C]S]D]

DISTRICT NETWORK WORKSHOP

California Special
Districts Association

Districts Stronger Together

UNDERSTANDING THE BROWN ACT

DATES AND LOCATIONS:

August 16 — North of the River Recreation and Park District, Bakersfield — Central Network
August 23 - South Feather Water and Power Agency, Oroville — Northern Network
August 30 — Port San Luis Harbor District, Avila Beach — Coastal Network

September 6 — Coachella Valley Water District, Coachella — Southern Network
November 1 - East Bay Municipal Utility District, Oakland — Bay Area Network

November 8 - Stockton East Water District, Stockton — Sierra Network

The Ralph M. Brown Act, California’s open meetings law, provides legal requirements to help ensure the right

of access to information and transparency in local government decision making. This workshop will guide

attendees through the ins and outs of the Brown Act, including:

e What constitutes a meeting - including committees, advisory boards, and serial meetings;

e |nformation on different types and manner of conducting meetings - including special meetings, emergency
meetings, and closed sessions;

e Agenda requirements, natice requirements, and public participation at meetings; and

e Potential penalties for violating the Brown Act.

SCHEDULE:

9:00 — 9:30 a.m. Registration

9:30 - 10:00 a.m. Grassroots Outreach & Legislative Updates for Special Districts
10:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. Understanding the Brown Act

12:00 - 1:00 p.m. District Network Discussion Lunch

sponsored by the California Special Districts Alliance

REGISTRATION: (includes lunch and one complimentary copy of CSDA's new Brown Act Guide)
[J CSDA Member— $25 [ Nan-Member — $40

Name:

Title:

District:

Address:

City: State: Zip:

Phone: Email:
Mail or fax completed form to:
CSDA, 1112 | Street, Suite 200 ,Sacramento, CA 95814 e fax: 916.520.2465

Questions?
Please contact us toll-free at 877.924.2732.




AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager @
DATE: August 8, 2017

SUBJECT: Award Contract for Maintenance on Water Tank #1

Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the Board direct staff to retain Advantage Technical Services, Inc. for

internal and external tank coating repairs on Tank #1.

Funding:
The District’s approved FY 2017-18 Capital Improvement Program budget includes budgetary

item number W-2017/18-1 Water Tank Maintenance Items in the amount of $50,000 for the
maintenance and repair of Water Tanks #1 and #2.

Discussion:

In February 2017, the District retained Advantage Technical Services, Inc. (ATS), to clean and
inspect the District’s two potable water tanks. At the April 2017 Board meeting, staff presented
the results of the inspection and the Board directed staff to include funding in the FY 2017/18
budget to complete the recommended maintenance items.

On July 26, 2017, staff met with ATS owner, Will Bellis. After reviewing the inspection results
with Bellis, staff requested ATS to provide a proposal for completing the internal and external
coating repairs on Tank #1. ATS’s proposal for repairs includes up to 2 days of spot repairs on
the interior and exterior of the tank, including a confined tank entry and conducting the spot
repairs while the tank is full. The water in the tank will be tested prior to putting the tank back
on-line. Staff recommends the Board retain ATS to complete the work outlined in their proposal
for an amount not to exceed $10,264.

Staff also requested ATS to prepare an options analysis proposal for the work needed on Tank
#2. The work needed on Tank #2 is more extensive and will likely require preparation of plans
and specifications for the bidding process. Staff will bring that proposal to the Board at a future
meeting.



Estimate for:

Avila Beach CSD Tank #1 Potable Water

Coating Repairs w/ Confined Space Entry
Vacuum Recovery Preparation on Interior 7

=TS

ADVANTAGE TECHNICAL SERVICES, Inc.

Ei

n Co

2 Days of Spot Repair on Worst Areas, Interior & Exterior

g ing & Insp
(805)595-2282

Pre and post testing of water is recommended but would be outside of ATS' scope

Pre-job Hours Rate OT Hours| Estimate
($)/hr
Engineering (PE) 0 175.00 $ -
Tank Inspector (AP1653, AWS CWI) 0 145.00 $ -
Coating Inspector 0 145.00 $ -
ASNT Level lll NDE Engineer 0 145.00 $ -
Procurement/Materials 4 110.00 $ 440.00
Mobilization/Demobilization 6 110.00 $ 660.00
g $ 1,100.00 Pre-Job Subtotal
Potable Confined Space Entry Team Hours | Tota OT Hours
Minimum 3 person team required Hrly Rate
Entrant 16] 122.00 $ 1,952.00
Diver, Standby Entrant 16 71.00 $ 1,136.00
Hole Watch, Diver's Tender 16 70.00 $ 1,120.00
Materials mix., Asst. Tender 16 67.00 $ 1,072.00
Entry Consumables 1 85.00 $ 95.00 |Breathing air, batteries, fuel
Entry Equipment 1 125.00 $ 125.00 Jie. Crew truck, equip., generator,
Overhead 28% 16 116.20 $ 1,859.20 Jinsurance, indirects, equip.
Profit 7% 16 37.80 $ 604.80
4 S 1 7,964 Dive Team Sub-Total
Special Equipment & Materials Qty. Rate
Interior coating material, NSF approved 6 55 $ 330000
Misc. coating consumables $ 280.00 Jw/ epoxy and polyurethane mat'l
Exterior coating epoxy & urethane $ 190.00 |Approximate match of finish coat
; 5 $ 800.00 Special Equip & Matl
Post Job Qty. Rate
Coating Inspector 2 145.00 $ 200.00 JPhoto documentation of work
Misc. Admin. 2 90.00 $ 200.00
$ -
: , ‘ | $ 400.00 Post-Job Sub-Total
Travel & Per Diem Qty. Rate
Miles o $ 0.75 $ =
Per Diem 0] $ - $ -
19 - Travel Sub-Total
Cost Estimate
Contingency: 0% $ -
Pre-Job: $ 1,400 $ 1,100.00
Confined Space Entry / Dive Team: $7,964.00 | $ 7,964.00
Special Equipment and Materials: $ 800.00 { $ 800.00
PostJob: $ 400.00]$ 400.00
Travel: $ - $ -
Subcontractor & mark-up: $ -
$ =
Estimate Total:| $ 10,264.00

All work will be conducted on a time and materials basis. This estimate will not be exceeded without approval.
Coating application in wet environment is intended to extend the life of the overall coating system but will not
match the aesthetics or life of coatings applied in dry conditions with optimal preparation.

Close match of exterior coating will be the goal but is not guaranteed due to weathered condition etc.




AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager @
DATE: August 8, 2017

SUBJECT:  Purchase Stand-By Generator and Switch Gear for the First Street Pump Station

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Board award a contract to All-Tech Services Inc., for the purchase of
a stand-by generator and transfer switch for the First Street Pump Station.

Funding:

The District’s FY 2017-18 Budget includes budgetary item numbers WW-2017/18-4 and -5 in
the total amount of $40,000. Staff recommends using these two line items to fund the purchase of
the generator and transfer and then modify the Capital Improvement Program budget (if needed)
at the mid-year review. There are adequate funds in the District’s reserves to fund this project.

Discussion:

When power goes out in the District the stand-by generator at the wastewater treatment plant
automatically switches on to provide power to run the plant and ensure that we continue to meet
the permit effluent limits and don’t experience a sewage spill. Staff is proposing the District
install a similar (but significantly smaller) stand-by generator and automatic switch gear at the
First Street sewage pump station to avoid a sewage spill. Currently, when the power goes out,
Operations staff must respond to the lift station very quickly to set-up the gas powered portable
pump. Operations staff then must man the station essentially full-time since the fuel tank on the
portable pump is relatively small and must be re-filled every 90 minutes or so. The District has
not experienced a sewage spill/overflow at this pump station in recent years, but we have spent a
considerable amount of money in emergency response and overtime pay. Installation of the
stand-by generator and switch gear will minimize the chances of a sewage overflow and reduce
District emergency response and operations costs.

If the Board approves the project, staff will be complete it in two phases. The first phase is to
purchase/order the generator and switch gear unit. While the unit is being built, staff will solicit
bids from qualified electrical contractors to install the unit at the pump station. Staff estimates
installation costs will be approximately $15,000.



Staff solicited bids from three firms. The three firms and their respective bids are provided
below:

Sangha Energy, San Luis Obispo, CA. $40,960 (Generac SD030)
San Luis Powerhouse, San Luis Obispo $27,116 (Kohler 30 kW)
All Tech Services, Paso Robles $27,750 (Generac SD030)

Staff recommends purchasing the Generac unit from All Tech Services. The price between the
Kohler and Generac is negligible and our project consultant, Greg Notley at Power and
Communications, recommends that the District go with the Generac Unit and sound enclosure.



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manag| r%‘/’
DATE: August 8, 2017

SUBJECT: District Financial Reserve Policy — Resolution No 2017-09

Recommendation:
Receive Report, consider any public comment and either provide direction to staff or adopt
Resolution No. 2017-09 adopting a District Financial Reserve Policy

Discussion:

During this year’s budget review process the Board and staff discussed preparation of a formal
District Financial Reserve Policy. The California Special Districts Association has prepared
Special District Reserve Guidelines and recommends Special District Boards consider adopting a
formal Reserve Policy. An excerpt from the Guidelines document is attached for your
information and review and a full copy of the Guidelines will be available at the Board meeting.

In order to move the process along in a timely and cost effective manner, staff retained Mr.
Clayton Tuckfield of Tuckfield and Associates to review the District’s most recent financial
audit and prepare a draft Reserve Policy and accompanying Resolution. Mr. Tuckfield’s firm
specializes in Rate Studies, Capacity/Connection Fee Studies and Revenue Bond Feasibility
Studies and he has prepared Reserve Policies for many Special Districts. There are many options
for the depth and type of reserve funds a Special District can establish. Mr. Tuckfield and I
attempted to strike a balance between a policy that is not too detailed and one that is detailed
enough for a District the size of Avila Beach CSD.

After reviewing and commenting on an initial draft, we developed a draft Policy that included
the following Reserve Funds for the water and sewer enterprises:

Operating Reserve Fund

Capital Replacement Reserve Fund
Capacity Reserve Fund

Emergency Capital Reserve Fund and
Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund

Exhibit A of the proposed Resolution summarizes each of the reserve funds purpose and
proposes a target funding level. Initial funding of the reserve funds will be accomplished by
transferring funds from the District’s LAIF general reserve funds. Reserve fund balances and
target reserve funding levels will be reviewed and adjusted (if necessary) as part of the annual
budget adoption process. The Table on Page 4 of Exhibit A provides a first draft of the reserve
fund target balances.



‘sio1ejsiba| pue eipawl ‘olgnd sy} Buowe Buipueisiapun
a1e11|108} 0} JUsWBbeUBW [BIDUBUIL JOLISIP UO Yoealino
wiopiad pue wWoolpleoq Jisyl apisino Buipueisiepun
a10ul0.d 01 8NUIUOD SIOLISIP |Bloads 1By} [elluasse si |
‘suoinelado 1ou1sip Buipiefal S1eylo pue Spuen}isuod o1
4Ooea11no JO 3oe| Ing ‘Adijod 4O 30B| 10U SI 0007 Ul SeAIasel
1011SIp |e1oads BuipieBbal uI8du0d 8y} 4O 1SOW palessuab
aney Aew 1BYAA A|SNoLISS wisyl exel pue senljigisuodsal
Ale1dnply Jisyy 8ziubooal S|eldiyo 1011SIp [eroads ‘|je Jou

“1soul pue saioljod aAIesel Pays!|aelise aney Apeaije S1oLisIp

|e1oads 1uspuadspul Auewl ey} peziuboosl 82104 3Sel
vASD 8y} ‘uonips puooss syi Buitepdn pue Buidojeasp u|

‘PBIBKO SBOIAISS puUe 8ZIS UO paseq ‘s|qeoldde

alaym ‘saioljod Jloyl 01Ul SpusuUIS|e aulapINb mau asay}
a1e10d100Ul 01 S|BIDIYO 1011SIP S8beinoous Yas) "uoilp3
pu028S 'SaullepINg BAIesaY 10L1sIq [eloads e aonpold
01 Z10Z Ul 8210} 3SE1 PU0das B PauoISSILIWOD \YJSD
‘uondope peaidsapim a1ebinuwold 01 SHOKS JO 8OUBNUIIUOD
Ul pue ‘sauljepinb palepdn pue 81eJndoe 1SOW 8y} 8INSus
0} Japlo Ul 'al0jalay] "‘panjons aAeY salbojouluua)

pue saonoeld Buiunoooe ulened ‘elowlayun

‘seonoeld 1seq parosdwl uo syybisul mau pauleb aaey
S10111SIp |B108ds ‘'ssad0.d Buol-epedsp siyl ybnody |

'sa101j0d poolslapun Ajises pue sAlsuayaidwiod syowolid
lo/pue ‘saioljod aalesal mau dojansp ‘seloljod anlesal
118y} 81BN|BAS 0} SBUIBPING 8yl pazi|iin aAeY S10UISIP
|e1oads Auew ‘' |0QZ Ul 80104 %Skl [eulbliO S1 paUSAU0D
vASD 20uls passed Buiney 8peosp e 180 YIm ‘Aepol

UONIP3 PuoIss
sauljaping aAlasay Jouysiq je1oadg

‘anles Ayl

S8IHUNUILIOD By} 104 SBDIAISS
21Ignd 1uBIDIYS PUB BAILDBYS
-1S09 8pIn0id 01 JUBUILIWUIOD
Jiayy Bulyng ur wisyy 1sisse
01 SIO1BIISIUILIPE PUB S|BIOIHO
Buluianob 1011SIp [e1oads 10}
|00} B Se 82104 ysel aul Ag
padojenap a1em sauljeping
aAlasay 1011sIq |e10ads ay |

‘Juswidojanep

Adljod Bulinp pessnosip aq O}
sanss| sy} pue Aojjod enlesal
B 1O SJUBWIS|e |B1IUaSSe 8yl
U10g Ayauspt 0} 100g Ul 82104
»sel e paullo} dSD 'siyl
ysidwoooe 0] “sanljiqisuodsal
Ateionpiy aiouy Buljjiging ut
SJO1eJISIUILUPE PUE S|BIDIYO
Bululanob 1ou3sIp |eloads
1SISSE p|noMm sauljapinb
9A19S8] JO 1UBWIYSI|geISa

8y} 1By} Pa.LINdU0d YAS)
‘uoneleldialul elep pue
sBuIpUl} S,UOISSILULLOY)
18AO0OH 8[1I7 8y3 4O

BWOS Yim paalbesip
suoneziuebio Aoesonpe
1011SIp |e10ads ybnoyiy

92104 yse] sauljaping
aniasay yas9

‘palUeLIEM SBM 1UBISIBA0 [euonippe

Jl BUILWIBYEP 01 Pamalnal aq seonoeld pue saioljod 1UsLUISaAUl
1By} pue ‘paysi|gelse aq saalesal uspnid 1oj saulspinb 1eyl
PAPUSLLILIODSI UOISSIWIWIOD) 18A00H 81T 8yl ‘Ajg1ewn|n

'SOAI8S8l 9|puUBY S8I1IUNOD 1By}
ulyum s1o11sip [e1oads moy a1ebiisaaul 0} wayl buipes) ‘saun(
puelb Buowe payids sem 1salalul pue pjay alam SadueUl) 1011SIP
|eloads uo sBulleay anne|siba ‘seAl8sal Ul suolj|iq , pepleoy,,
aney selouabe oljgnd ,,81n2sqo,, 1ey} Builuie|d sauljpesy Jauueq
YHM 110d8l UOISSILILIOD) J8AOOH 8117 8yl 0} Paloeal eIpall SMaN

@c_ccm_m 2IN}onJselul
01Ul uonew.OUl 8AJesal Bullelodiodul SIOUISIP JO 30T e
S8oueUly JOLISIP JO
sieewAoljod pue s1usNniISUOD Buowle BUIPURISISPUN JO YoBT e
UOoI1BWIOUI
[e1oueUlf 1011SIP JO uoledljgnd pue ALIGISIA JO 0BT e
ADUBISISUOD puE S8ulapING 1O oeT e
:Buipnjoul seasssal 10111SIp
|eioads 01 Buie|al senss| JO Jaquinu e pasiel 1odal 000z ey

. Buluueld ainjonuisesur spimalels 1o jeuoibal

Ul palspisuoo Jou usyo pue psazioyqnd [jem jou aie

1Byl SeAI8Sal Ie|jop Uol[ILU-I}iNW payueq aAey S1o113SIp
jeloads juspusadepul Jo spaipunf, :paieis eyl Buipuly
A1010NPOJIUI UB YLIM SBAI9SaI JOLISIP [B108ds UO UOI09s
e papn|oul 11odels 8y] , /8iniN- 8y} 10f S82IN0S8Y IO
1584 8y} JO Soljay :S1o13si [e1oads, 'pejHIus 1odal
UOISSIWWOY) J8AOOH 8117 000Z & Sem sauliaping
aAlasay 10u1sI |e1oads Syygs) 104 sisauab ay |

S8UI|3pINg) 8AI8SaY
1911181(] [B193dS O UOIRWIOS 8Y|

paapN e
Buriiing
e Bultams

\/_”
T



‘Aujigeureisns wual-buoj s jo13sIp ayy azipiedoal pjnod saniasal
juaiaiynsul ajiym ‘poddns JaAedalel pue 1aAedxe} auiwiapun pjnoo
S8AI8S8I pajuRIIBMUN 8SNEIA(] Suolsanb aledlap aq ued asay] ;ybiy 0oy
Aauy a1e usym pue mo| 00} SBAIBSAL BIB UBYM ‘SPJOM 1310 U| jyBnoua

SI yonuw Moy ‘s 8A13sal e Bujuiejurew ul uonsanb [eluawepuny ay |

San1asal Jnoge suonsanb yuepodusy

‘|8A8| UIBLISD B 1B 8AI8Sal 8yl
Bululeluiew 104 suoseal ayl AsAu0D se
[|om se ‘ansasal e Buidope 10} seAllow
ay1 o1jgnd ay1 01 81eJIUNWIWIOD 19118q
10111S1p 8y) djay ued Aoijod e Bundopy
‘Buiop aie noA 1eym Jo senoidde pue
1INOQE SAMOUY SSOQ 8y} UBYM |N}SSals
SS9| 10| B pue J8ISes 10| e ale sqol

ino 1eyl sousiadxe |euosiad wouy
puelsiapun sn 4O ||e pue ‘||e Jaye 'ssoq
8yl ale Aay] ‘Aousbe oiignd Aue 1o}
Alljigisuodsal |eruswepUN) B S| Op NOA
1BYm 1noge pswojul oljgnd ayy Buidesy
SSaualemy aljgng

'SUOISIo8p }NoiyIp Buluieidxs pue

Bupjew yioQ 10} |001 B|geN|eA B SB SOAISS
Su0ISeo00 yons 0} Jold aoe|d ul saioljod
9AI9Sal PUINBH 'S8} 10 SOXB) ‘Solel
30Npa. 10 8slel 0} Jayiaym Jano Auiinios
908/ ||IM salousbe o1gnd ‘Ajge1inau|
:uoneaynsnp jeasiy

‘Buiuueid wisl-buo| jgisuodsal
sajowoud pue diysuewsauwebh |eonijod
saonpal saloljod aalesal Buizijiin 9oey

1snu spJeoq Buluisnoh 1eyl seoloyo
1INOIIP PUE [BISIBA0IIUOD 1SOW 8y} JO
BUIOS JU8saldal SUOISIDap anuaAaY
:Ananaalqp

‘sdiysuoneas Buryiom Ayiesy

S81L1I|10B) YOIYM ‘SBAIBSal JO 8sn pue
|aAs| Jedoud sy} Jo Bulpueisiepun paieys
e se1ebnwouid Aojjod paidope Ajjewilo) v

:uoisip paleys

:s9101j0d aAlasal ydope 01 1013SIp |e10ads e
1o} suosea. olj10ads Auew ale alayy 1a1es
pP810U SaAlesal JO sujauaq JaAedalel pue
JaAedxe) Bulyole-18A0 8y} 01 UOIIpPE U|
Aa1j04 aniasay

e a:_ﬁ_o_u< 10} suoseay

'suofsanb [eluswepuny

asay] Buamsue u Aduabe inoA

1s1sse ||Im Adrjod anlasal e Bundopy
‘Juanbau} 00} [|e SI ‘81n1n} 8y} 10}
Buluue|d ueyy Jayiel 1adeaya saoinias
1ua1In Bupew uo sanissal puadxa 0]
8Inssald Juads aq p|noys spuny aalasal
alaym Jo uonsanb ayy os|e si a1ay|

‘Ajigeurelsns

wial-buoy s1ausip ayy azipsedosl pjnod
S8AJasal Jualalnsul ajiym ‘voddns
laAedajel pue sahedxe; suiuwispun
PIN0D SBAIFS8. PBIUBLIEMUN 8SNRIA]
suolisanb s1ealap aq uea asay| ;ybiy
001 A8} 81e UBYM PUB MO| 00] SBAIASA.
81e UBYM ‘spiom 1810 uj ;ybnous s
yonw moy ‘st aAlssal e Buuiejuleuw

Ul uoisanb |eluawepuny ay |

81nINJ 8Y} Ul UBWASAAU| 'G

81N10N1)SelyUl pauleIuRW-||BAA b

sales 9|qeIs ¢

ssaupaledsld Aouabiawi 7

s18Bpnq aauejeq o3 sbuineg *|
:Buipnjoul syyauag 1uealiubis
sisAedsiel pue sisAedxel 18jjo s1911sIp
|eloads ‘saasasal Juapnid ybnoly |
‘S8JIAI8S 8100 JO AJBAIBP B|qRuUIRISNS
8y} JO LoIepUNO} 8y} 8.1e SaAIaSaY
EYVELETY
e Buiurejurepy jo asuepoduwy

u0119Npo.IU|

"S89IAJ3S 8109 4O
Asanijap ajqeuiesns
a3y} Jo uonepunoy
auy) ale san1asay




Juawaoe|dal pue Jiedsl wiay-buo -}
spunj (AousBunuod) pajaLisalun Jo [ana7 8
80UBUBJUIBW PaLIBya( P
Juawabeuew pue aauenss| 1gaq
sabieyo pue sa84 q
Spuny Uoiez||iqels-aiey e
:apnjoul sslaljod
-gns pasu Aew 1ey) seale swog "saloljod-gns 1o syuawa|a Auew apnjoul Aew Aaijod anlasal peoiq vy g

Ajunwwiod
pue pieoq $121s1p au Jo Aydosojiyd sy pue ssausnbiun $1913SIP BUI ‘UOISSIL SIILASIP BUL UHIM 1UBISISUOD
ale 1ey seniasel J0j sjans| 1ahie) 1ag ‘sasodind pue saLiobialea yjog-saniasal Ayuapi Ajies|g g

"spaau yons 183w 0} Alessasau Buimouioq wial-Hoys jo 8a1Bap ay jo Buipuelsiapun
aiseq e p|ing pue JeaA [easiy ayy Buunp mojj-ysea jo ,‘Ajjeuosess, 10 ‘Moj} pue qqga ay a1ewnsy -/

‘uejd Juawanoidwi [ended padojanap-|jam e ulejulew pue 81eal) ‘g

'saloijod Juawnsaaul pue 186pnq Bunesado paouejeq
B SB 4ons ‘s8101jod |e1oueul J3YI0 YIM Jualsisuoa aq isnw Aojjod an1asal poob e jey) aziubooaay G

'sa101jod Bunenjeas u indul 118y y88s pue Indino JO SJUBN}ISUOI PUB SIBWIOISNI WIojU| 9
uawabebus njBuluesw Jayo pue ‘'sbunsal Auunwiwod ‘skanins Jawoisna yBnoiy Indur ¥88s ‘q
uotyisod |e1aueuty Jiayp utejdxa pue aignd ayy
01 1n0 U3B8] 0} SI0LISIP 10} [R2111D 8111 ‘sjuiod Builiels poob aie podal jenuue pue Jana|smau ejnbal y e
‘Auioud e Buneaiunwwod aye ¢

018 ‘Aduanysuod swes ayy Buinias saiouabe a1jgnd JaLpo ‘suoneziuebio Ayunwiwod
‘sdnoib ssauisng ‘siaAedxe) pue sisAedelel 8| ‘ssaooid Buiuueid aifieiens sy ur ndur Alunwiwon yeeg q
's|ens)| 1061e) a1enbape Buidope pue spuny aniasal ajeldoldde
Buiysijgeass ui s1ousIp sISISse iy “suoipuod aiydelBbowap pue AloienBal ‘jeluswiuoliaua Buibueyo oy
1depe pue sjedionue spieoq 10sip djay uea Buuueid aiBsieng ‘saining Jiayy adeys pue uejd Ajuaiola
alow uea syoinsip ‘suejd aibaens Buikyipow ‘Alessasau uaym ‘pue Bunenjeas Ajeinbas ‘Guidojanap Ag e
‘Buiuueyd oibaens ui abebugy g

'suonesado 1011S1p 10§ SIBALP
1500 JuRAYIUBIS PUB SSBUISNG 8109 S1311SIP Y3 Jo BulpuelsIapun 818]dwod e Wwio4 7

"S18SSe JO UoIIpU0d ainseaw Apejnbay "o

"BAIsusUl [eYded S1101IsIp 41 SisAjeue 8jaAa-8}l| 8zinn q

'SIUIRIISUOD pU SPaaul ‘s|eob 1a11sIp Japisuo) e
"JOL1SIP 8y} Jo ssauanbiun ayy Aynuap| |

:Aa1jo4 aniasay e buidojanag 10j sajdioauiiyg

1snJ] sajeald mm_u‘_\_o_‘_a SUVISINCY

‘7§ 10/pue ¢ "'SON
luswislels (gSyD) pleog spiepuels Builunoddy [BIUSWUIBAOL)
Se yons 'Buiiodal [eloueUl) JO POYIBW PBZIPIRPURIS S
‘Alljigeuleisns |eosiy
UO SN20} WISI-BUo| Ylim 'S10108UIp JO pleoq paiusiio-Adljod 'z
‘uoissiu/Aydosojiyd jeuoneziuebio Jes|) °|
‘MO|8q salsinbalald 881yl 8yl ysi|qe1sa
1s114 pjnoys 1oLisip e ‘Aoljod entesal e Huidojaasp 01 1ol
[Ad1j04 8AIBSBY B JO SJUBWIa|F [BUOIIEPUNO

"JUBLUUOIIAUS
BuiBueyo-1ens ue Ul Sal1UIRLIBOUN 81NN} pUe Jussaid
1suiebe Aousbe sy Jo Alljigels [elourUl 8Y) UsyIBuans 0] 'S
‘'suonenion|y
91kl 10 $88) 8dIAI8S pauue|dun Jo Aljigissod a8yl Bulziwiuiw
sny1 ‘'sauniipuadxe psiledioiueun pue paiedioiue WwWouj
s1oedull Aserefpng JesA-1jnw pue |enuue asIaApe 8zIWIuIW O] ‘7
‘suejd wiei-buo| pue
uiel-Loys s,Aousbe sy 19w 03 Buipuny aienbape spiroid o] |
:saA1jo8lqO Aoijo4 aniasay

‘syuswalinba. |ebe| pue ‘swelboud 101sIp ‘seonoeid
AtereBpng ‘sa1o1jod [elouBUL JBYIO YL 1USISISUOD
Jauuew e ul sesodind o1y10ads 1no Alied 0y Aouabe olgnd
e Ag peieubisep si punj aAI8Sal B 1By} pueisiepun ol
[BO11LID SI )| "S1@SSe ALUNWIWoD JO diyspiemals [njaieo
pue 8ouspn.d [eIDURUIY 0} JUSUUHWILIOD e Se Adijod
aAJasal e 1dope pue dojaasp pinoys 10u1sIp [e1oads
4oe3 'spunyj eAiesal JO Juswisbeuew pue uonenwnooe  Aaoed
U} 10} B|BUONEI PBIBINDILIE-||SM pUE JeS|d B aq pjnoys ~ 2Msel edope
818y} 1.y} s1oLlsIp [e10ads Buowe Jaijeq uowulod RH R

pInoys 1011sip
BU} 108|481 SBUIBPIND 8AIaSaY 10UISI( [B10adS 8y | |ervads yoeg

Ad1104 Buidojana( :sanasay Jo
luswabieueyy pue uolleNWNIIY JUSPNId




(3INIVHLSNOD

- < -+ +
"108(0.d |e1oads

Burwoadn ue 1oy paubisse 'S8UIj98p 8NUBAaI | SjuBWUIBA0D

8( p|n0J Juswio|fe ue pUE $300yS 2ILIOU0ID 18430 Jo

10 S8NUBA8) Ul 8ulja3p B umouwun jsulebe suone[nbal
wouy Buwwa)s 186png uolysna e apiaoid 03 10 sme| 10 RENONEI]
ayi urdeb e1asyo oy |, punj uoiiezijgels, e oy siojuelf pue
'80Ue|eg puny paubisse aq1ybiw |  8duejeq puny jo uoniod 'S101Ipald se juawmopua
joAioBajea siyy | saue|eq puny 4o aleys e e ]Iwwod 1ybiw pieoq yons saiued | ue jo sydiound
Ul paulesIsuod ‘g)dwexa Jo4 ‘asodind |  Buiuisnob ay; ‘ajdwexa Aq pasodwi | ay1 'ajqealsdal
1Se8)| S 8sN 1By} loj pajeubisap | 104 ‘(uonnjosas e ybnoiyl | ‘aauejeq puny Sueo| 4o
'sali0bajen [e19140 40 Apoq e Ag pieoq Bujuienob “6-8) | Jo asn sy uo uojpod
1N0J J8L0 8y} 10 Butew uoisioap jo | Buyew uoisioap Jo (ana| suonewi| wisy-Buoy
BuLiapisuod 1a)je [en8) 188yBiy sy Jayie | 1saybiy sl 1e Jjasy uodn 8|qeadlojus a8yl se yans
ya| alejeyy 1B pays!|gelsa si Jualul 101sIp [eroads Yy Ag | Ajjeusslxa sey | ‘sjqepuadsuou
$80UBRQ pUN/ |je | 8U] "BSN papualul Ue Jo} pasoduu suoneywi| UOI1BIYISSE|D Apuaiayu si
sasudwoa siy| | pasyeuwnes si uopiod siy| sassedwoaus siy| siy] | AoBaiea siy
i JONV1vE ONN4 JONVIVE | JONVIVE ONN4 | JONVIVE ONN4
(31VNDIS3a HO GINDISSY ONN4 03LLININOD (310181534 | 319VANIdSNON

JONVIVE ANN4 40 SININOJINOD

-90Uejeq puny O SIUBUOAWIOD JUBIBKIP BAl} SBYsSI|qeISe pue |, 1uads aq ued punyj syl Ul
Sjunoue yolym o} sesodind o14108ds 8yl UO SIUIEIISUOD JOUOY O} PUNOG S| JUSUUISAOB
BU1 YoIym 01 Jusixe, 8yl 01 sndoj 8y} sebueyo G ON 1uswalels gsyo “(uoneudoidde
10} 8|qe|lene Jou "9'l) ,80UBleq puny peAlesal,, pue (uolendoidde 1o} ajgejiere ')
,O0UB[EQ pUNY pBAISSBIUN,, UsamIaq paysinBunsip pue (Bunebpng o) uoneudoidde
10} S|QE|IEAE S18M $82IN0S8I I8Ylaym U0 pasndoy 8oueleq puny jo Buiniodal ‘1sed au uj

‘peliodal useq Ajleuonipell sey esuejeq puny moy sebueyp ‘'suoniueqg

8dA| pun4 |p3UBLLUIBACD pUue BulLIOdeyY Boueeg PUNY '¥G ‘ON 1uswalels gsyo
's@sodind Jay3o 0} PeNIWI| SI YONW MOY PUB 8AISSa) B 10} 8|qe|ieAe 20 1ybBiw aoueleq
puny Jo yonw moy Buiquosap ul 1ied e Aejd spiepueis Bunioda doUeleq pun4 "aoueleq
punj |B101 843 Jo uoiiod e 8s1IAWOD AjjeoIdA] | seAlasal,, ‘Spuny [BIUSWIUISAOR ]

aouejeg pun4 jo sjuauodwoy

| i 5,

,’saseyaind jeuded

pue quswalnaliqap Ajea ‘(sanuanai paaaxa Ajlielodwa) 1eyy sainypuadxa Janod o} ‘B'a)
uonezijigess ‘s1sod dn Hels apnjoul aNUaAI BLWII-3UO 8SN 0] YSIM ABL JUBWLIBACH B yaiym
sainypuadxa jo sajdwex3, ‘U0NLII0SSY S1891Y(Q 8UBUI4 juawiulanog ayy o1 buiploaoy

saimipuadx3 awn-aug

. Buinoai-uou aq 03 payoadxa aue nq (1ueib leahA-saiyp e’ ba)

1eal auo ueyy a1ow 1o} a|qejiee aq Aew anuanal asay ‘siueib pue 1uawdolanap wolj
sanuaaal uanbayyur ‘sbuiaes Buipunyas puoq ‘sjasse Juawuianob Jo sajes uanbayjul :apnjaul
anusAal 8WI-8UO 4O sa|duiex3,, ‘UOBIO0SSY SIBDIJ(Q SUBLIY JUBWILIBAOG 3L} 0} Buipioaay

anuanay awmn-augQ

10 sun. Butpuny awin-auo sy} usym sisiia 186pnq
& 0} pes) Aew )1 ‘s1s00 Bunesedo Buiob-uo puny o) 10 suonisod awi-jny [euonippe apiAcid o} 11 S8SN pue
$8NUBABJ 8LN-8UO S136 12111 [B(08AS e | ‘sasuatixa BWII-8UO 10} Pasn ag piNoys SBNUBAI awn-sug p
‘spouad aimny 0} $3500 Hunelado
1ua1ind Bunieaojle |1e3ua pinom siy asneasq s1soa Bunesado wial-Loys 1oy pasn 80 Janau pjnoys spaado.d
1g8Q ‘spoted asalj) 0} 8ainies 1gap ey} Buipeaids Aq s1s00 asau a1eaojje 01 10LSIp B SMOJ|e 1q8p
J0 8auenss| 84 'sieaA 23Sl SS010e 1jBuBq e 8piA0Id 1ey) SIS0 puny 0} pasn aq pinoys spasaoid 198 2
$1509
aimanaselul pajeubisap uo juads pue 1o} palUN0Ide Ajaleledas aq ISnU SIMANISEIU 10} JUBLISSASSe
[e19ads e ‘ajduwexs 104 ‘asn Jejnaied e 1oy palainsal Ajjeba) ale U810 sanuanal asodind-(e1aadg °q
‘Papun; a1 saniAnae ButoBuo yoiym yBnoayy spuny asodind-jesauaki ayy ale sanuanal Bunesadg e
:pasn aJe spuny a1aym Ajuap) -

[eude) p
Bunesadq -
wig)-buoy -q
wiaj-Hoys e
'$8A1308(q0 |eOSIy S101LSIP [RI9adS 8L BUs( -

suonesapisug

S1assy J19N/uoilisod Jap 10 asuejeg pu
Buneoao||y pue hunabpng 1o} SUuoIRI3PISUOY I1J193(



(s81a1jod [e1ouBUI ‘Y049 /S 0)

. 'SSO|

le Ajutepisaun jsurebe abipay
e se sanlasal Bujuiejuiew
10} paau ay} aauanjul ey}
NSl 8y} azAjeue pjnoys yeis
8dueUI4 ™, "SUOIHIPUOD |BD0]
U0 paseq uoIs1aap |eaoj e
81ewWnn si adueleq punj eyl
$10U L0N.IIOSSY S1991Q
80UBUI4 JUBLIUIBAOE) Bl

siseg e se
suonipuoy |20

‘Alisnpul Jieyy ul suoneziueblo

1810 uey} 1ualeylp oq Aew 1eyl JUBUUOIIAUS
Bunesedo ue Jo 10sIp 8y} J0 s1oadse anbiun sy} uo
peseq soilel UMO JIByl Ysi|gelse Aew S10LISIP UIBLIS)

sasuadx3 BunesedQ o1 AejinQ |eude)
Aunb3 o1 AepnQ |euden

olleY 1ualn) e

Alnb3 o1 sexe| Auedold e

Alnb3 01198 e
:Buimojof ay1 epnjoul Aew sonel esoyy
JO 8Wos "M0j| 001 8q Aews Alinba uaym Buiuiem Bejy pau
B 9pIA0id 0} swNWiUIW Ysi|qelsa ey} SOilel 10 Sejnuuio)
186.e1 Alnbae Aey aney saLisnpul Auejy “sonel 1o
S3yIewyouSq Asy ysijgeiss 03 Juem Aew 1011SIp |eroads
B 'SeAJesal 81enbspe s81NiISuU0d 1eym Buliepisuod U

“JUBLUUOIIAUS [BUOIRISdO S,10LISIP 8U3 Yl Pa1eInoSSe
S8OUEISLUNDIID &NbIuN 8yl YUM 82IApe [eiausb yons
doue|leq Ajjnjaied pinoys soLISIP [e10ads ‘Syuswulanoh
asodind-jeloeds sy "ezis Jo ssa|p.iebal ‘seinypuadxa
Bunesado puny |eseush Jeinbal 10 senusnes Bunelado
puny |elausB Jiey) ul uleIuIRW PINOYS SIUBUIUIBAOB
90UB[Bg puUNy paubisseun JO JUNOWE 8y 0} Se
80UEpING SIBYO (YO4D) UONBIDOSSY SI8014() 80UBUI4
JusWIUIBAOD B8y Jaquunu 1e61e) |ons|-aAlasal B 108|8S
01 s da}s 1xau oy} ‘pauljep 186ie) 8y} 4O SISEq 8ul YIAA

‘spuall wisl-Buo| Liolsip pjnom 1eyy sdoip 1o sexids
[BNSNUN JO 109448 81 8A0UISI PINOYS pUB slaguinu
Bunesado 108|481 Ajuo pinoys aseq syl ‘esed 1ayie
u| ‘sainiipuadxe esooyd 1yBiw 01j0j110d anusnsl
8|ge1oipaid sS8| B YlM JUSWIUIBAOB B Seaiaym
‘'senuanel 8sooyo pinom AjjeaidAl sexel Apedold uo
Alinesy saijel 1eyl uswulenob v “a|geioipa.d eiow S|
1Uswisle Yoiym uo spuedap siseq e se sainipuadxe
pue enusAsl UseM18(Q 801040 8y ‘sainiipuadxa
Bunelado ienbal 1o senuansl Bunesedo ejnbal JEINHIE]
jo eBejusoled e se eduejeq puny peloLISsIUN JO
SulIdl Ul paulyep AjjeaidAl si 1ebuel 8y “uleluIeW 0}

S®Alesal JO [ans) 1abiel e 18s 1snwi Adljod ealesel v

sjabiie] janaq aniasay

‘paubisseun

8SIMIBU10 ale Jey}
$80UE|R( JO SISISU0D
SENUEAERITR T IGEE]
10} 8AI8S81 Y} ‘asn
113y} Uo SuIeLSU0D
Buiksen 01308lgns ale
salobales paubisse pue
paniwwod ‘pajalsal
‘s|qepuadsuou ay}

ul sjunowe asneaag
'8|qeJauina ale s}oLsIp
|etoads yaiym o}
sanuanal xe} Auadoud
ul suonenyanjj Jo
19848 8] WOJy Ja11SIp
ay110a30.4d 03 pue
Bunes puoq ybiy e
urejulew o3 uapnid si
|88 SIU1 Jo anJasal

B S8A31|3q 19113SIp

8y "sanuienaaun
J1WOU023 10} 8AIBSAI

e se sasn buloueuy
18yjo pue sainypuadxa
puny |esauab pajabipng
jojuaauad Y, ueys
$$8| 10U JO aoue|eq
punj paubisseun
wnuwiuiw e suiejulew
wusip X, 8yl
afienbueq

Aaijod ajdweg

suonuyag adA; puny
[eluauiLIaA0g pue Buipiodsy aauejeg puny 1noge 18ays 19e) gy

.~ Uoljewuojul aaue|eq puny papodau ja1diaiul Ajipeas oy
8|qeun alam S1asn JUawale)s [elouBUl JeY) pue paloaye
SEM uonew.ojul 8aueleq puny jo Ayjigepuelsiapun

8yl Jey} Jeajod aweaaq 0s|e 1| JUBISISUOIU] SBM OS|e
sjuawulanob Auew Aq papiodal uonewlojul souejeq
puny ay3 ‘Apuanbasuoy syuawuiancb juaiayip Ag
Apusisisuooul pataudiaiul buiaq aiam Buniodal asuejeq
puny Buipinb spiepuels Buisixa ay 1ey) pajeanal
yoJeasal ™, ‘1a}je panssi Sem G ‘0| Juawales ‘pieog
spiepueis Bununooay |eluswuianog ayy 03 Buipioaoy

vs gSv9

‘paubisseun usy) pue

‘paubisse ‘paniwLIod st Juads aq pinoys siunowe asay}
UoIYm Ul 18plIo 1nejep syl 1ey) sequosald G gSyo) ‘1sIxe
10u op ssjaljod yons siaypp “esodind oi10ads e 1o} a|qejiere
S 1UNOUIEe 8UO URY1 8JOW UBYM 1usds ale seoueleq

pun} yoiym ur 1spio ay3 Ajloads pinoys seioljod s1ou1sic]

‘Buipuads

10} 8|gejlene 10U S1 11 1Byl pue psubisseun ale jeyl SIUNOWE
4O SISISUOD 3 AYM 'S8IIUIBLISOUN DILLIOUODS IO} BAISSS)

B JO 80ueHOdWI 8Y1 S18SN 0] 81BJIUNUIUIOD O} J8PIO Ul
senuoud Bulpueds pue soueleq puny wnwiuiw Buipiebal
sa101od ysijqeise 1011sIp AJaAs 1By} POPUBLILIODSI S| 1|

'S80IN0S8.

dl|gnd 4o sainypusdxae pue sBuires juepnid sasiyoe o0}
Japlo ui Aoljod eAlasal ybnoly) wayl uo sisyeuleled aoe|d
01 Alessadauun 1 Buijew ‘paulessuod Ajjleiusuiepuny

.le $eduUe(eq puny 8|gepuadsuou IO S8oUBje] puNy
pa1oLIsal ‘Ajgsianuny) ‘saoueleq 8yl JBAO [0J1UOD BUUOS

sey ‘Ajaanoadses quswabeuew 1o pieoq Buiuianob sy se
Adljod enJssel e Jo Lied se Jo 1yBnoyl aq osje Aew aoueleq
puny paubisse pue penIWWOd 18ABMOH ‘Adljod aalesal e
Jo108[gns Alewud syy AjjeoidAy si eouejeq puny paubisseun



‘CELCVCBLLS
1B SN 10B1U0D ases|d '1uBWNJ0P SIYl aA0IdWIl URD
MOY UO Suoi3sabbns 1o syuswiod Aue aaey noA
4l pue [njdiay sauliepinb asayl puil NoA edoy app

‘Ssaualeme

Sl ainsus 01 21jgnd ay) abebus Ajaanoerold pue
dals 1xau 8yl 83el 01 S10UISIP SeBeRIN0JUS YASD)
"Hodal [enuue ue Jo 1uswdojansp 8yl 10 8lISqem
s,AousBe ue o1 uonewlojul sy} Buippe se ajdwis
se aq Aew deis 1511} v 10U1SIP 8y} J0 Alxejdwod
pue azis 8y} Aq pauiwielap Aj|eaidAl si1o11sIp e
Jo} st weibold yoesnno d1jgnd eanoedse. yoes
PBAJOAUI MOH “suoliejndod palselalul 10 palosye
0} siseq Jejnbai e UO uoliewoful weiboid pue
[elduUBUlf 81BOIUNWWOD 0} weibold yoeaiino
dlignd e jo uoneieds.d JapISUOD PINOYS S10LISIQ

'sse00.d

(I{BW-UOISIOBP pue uoNIsod [eloueUly S,10LISIP 8yl
21S18pun pue MouUX SISployeels 1By} ainsus 1ng
ljod anesal e dojansp Ajuo Jou Aousbe yoes jey)
21iodWll s1 11 ‘810f818y| "S8ILIIUS 1UBWIUIBAOB 220
J8Y10 pue s1usNIsSuU0D JIay) pue s1oLlsIp |eioads
ussMl1aq 108UUOISIP B SBM 818U} 1BY} PBpN|oU0D
HodaJ uoISSILUWIOY) JOA0OH 81T 000Z 841

'sabueyo Alolenbai 1o anne|siBe| ojqeoldde aq
W 8181 pue OJUIBUAP SI SUOILOUNS 3 YOIYAA UIYLIM
lusWIUOlIAUS [BIOURUIY 8L SB AliR|nBal pamainal
q 01 spaau Aoljod eAlasal Auy "uoneNlIS |eIoURULY
anbiun s1o1ISIp Yoes UO paseq paysiiqelss aq
0ys Aoljod enlesay ‘suolie|nBal pue sme| 1us1INd
2 Yum 8oueldwod Ul ele Asyl sinsus o3 uondope
oud saio1j0d easesal malnal pinoys sjeuoissajold
|eba| pue [eloueuly s,1011SIp [B108dS YorT

uoIsn|auo)

‘pabueyo aney

Aew jeyy spiepuels
/syuawalinbal Aue
Yim aoueljdwod ul
S| pue JoL3SIp 8y} Jo
Spaau ay} s1@aW
ainsua 0} Ajjenuue
Aaljod aniasal
113y} Jo mainal e
19Npuog ‘wnwiuiw je
‘sj011s1p |e1oads ey}
papuawwoaal sty

"1s8b1p Ajises ueo

ollgnd sy) Jeuuew e ul pasn Buleq

8.8 S8dUeUl} MOY 81BDIUNWWIOD

AjeAinoeold pue siuswelels [eloueul)
J0 Aunnuos olgnd s1edionuy ‘g

"S8INSO|OSIP 810U 1USWISLLLS [BIoURUIj

padueyus pue siebpng ‘Aodijod
ybnouyr spesu pue sjeob s1 sujinQ v
's1@sse 1au
10 @dueleq punj 1eb.ey sy ysijqels3y g
‘ue|d Juswenoidwil
|endeo e Buipnjour ‘spaau wis)
-Buo| pue 1ua1InNd s}l suILeXT 7
‘uonisod |eloueuly si 8zAeuy |
‘0) sp&eu 10L1sIp [e10ads yoeg

‘elendoldde s| eouejeq ayi Aym uiejdxs pue
S}esse 1au 8yl o) sue|d 118yl 81B21UNWILIOD
Al@A1108Y8 01 S| ‘1Iode. S,UoISSILWO)
J8A0OH 8117 000 8yl ul paziseyduus se
‘Op 01 pajie} 8ARY S1UBWIUIBAOD 1SOW 1BYAA
‘Sp8au pue suejd aininy 10} s1esse 18u
paAiasal aney ‘Buiuued poob 1o sunuo}
poob yBnolyl Jayile ‘sjusulUIBA0B awog

‘OpIse 18s aJe $s80In0sal sleudoldde

pue paledioilue ale ‘saipuabunuod pue
spaau |ended se yons ‘sasuadxe 18yl 8iNsua
01 196pnq pue suonelado Jiayl suiulexs
AlInya1ed pjnoys s1ouisIp [e10eds ‘spasu
wuel-buol Joy ueid Apedoud o1 jiey usyo
00} pue JesA yoes s82in0sal I8y} JO 1SowW
puads 0} UMOUY| U8aQ aARY S1UBWIUIBACH
"Aj|OLI01SIH "ALIOUO28 By} Ul &SN PNod
sieAedaiel pue sisAedxe) 1eyl s82IN0S8l
dnan bc.m 2l|lgnd a8y} uspingueno Asyl
'P8108||02 SI YoNnuU 00} §| "SPasuU palepuewl
188w 01 Buljie) ysu Aeyi ‘pa199)|090 s o]
00} §| "1snJ1 o1jgnd Ul S821N0Sal puadxe
PUB POy 198(|00 S8IH1US [PIUSLUUIBAOL)

{S19SSE 18U [B101 108}4R 1BU] ||IM MOY ‘PanssI
8.1 SpIEPUE]S Ul|eay JO [BIUSLIUOIIAUS MBU
10 1usoied Q| AQ 8sea.oul S1S00 Isiem |
/S®e10usbuiuod Jo) apise 18s ybnous s|
‘palinbal aq Aew Buipueul} usyl ‘spasu
8INJONIISBILUI 1USLIND JUBDIIUBIS S1SIX8
8181 J| 'S80IN0S8l S} 0} 81ejal Asyl se
uoneziueblio ayi Jo spasu Wisl-Buo| pue
WI81-1oys 8yl pue s}8sse 1uslind 8y} Jo
uoIlIpuUod 8yl uo spuadsp 1ey] jadeys
|eloueul} poob ui uoieziueblo siyl S|

suoisidaQ pue
uonisod |eraueuly Hunejnay



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
RESOLUTION No. 2017-09

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT REGARDING WATER AND WASTEWATER
ENTERPRISE FUNDS INCLUDIGN: OPERATING RESERVE, CAPITAL RESERVE,

CAPACITY RESERVE, EMERGENCY CAPITAL RESERVE, AND RATE
STABILIZATION RESERVE

WHEREAS, it appropriate and necessary for the Avila Beach Community Services District (the
“District”) to set goals for its reserve balances for long range financial and strategic planning;

and,

WHEREAS, the District has reviewed its reserve requirements and determined that it is
necessary to establish certain reserve funds and cash balances;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED by the Board of
Directors, Avila Beach Community Services District, San Luis Obispo County, California, as the
following findings and establish the reserve funds for each of water and sewer enterprises as
listed below.

= Operating Reserve Fund

= (Capital Replacement Reserve Fund
= (Capacity Reserve Fund

®* Emergency Capital Reserve Fund

= Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund

Each of these reserves are defined in Exhibit A Reserve Policy attached to this Resolution. The
Board of Directors shall review the Reserve Policy and the level of reserves in each fund on an
annual basis.

ON MOTION of Director seconded by Director , and on the following roll
call vote to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 8" day of August, 2017.

Peter Kelley, President

ATTEST:

Secretary to the Board of Directors



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
RESOLUTION No. 2017-09
RESERVES POLICY

EXHIBIT A

Purpose

The purpose of the Avila Beach Community Services District’s Reserve Policy (“Reserve
Policy”) is to ensure that the District has sufficient funding available at all times to meet its
operating, capital, and debt service obligations. Reserves should be managed in a manner to
fund costs consistent with its annual capital improvement program, forward-looking financial
plan, and other long-term plans while avoiding significant rate fluctuations due to changes in
cash flow requirements.

Policy

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Avila Beach Community Services District (“District™)
may establish reserve funds and reserve minimum balances as it determines to be in the best
interest of the District. The reserve balances are intended to ensure that the District has
sufficient reserves to meet current and future needs. Such balances shall be reviewed by the
Board and District staff on an annual basis as part of the budget process.

With this Policy, the District establishes and segregates several reserve funds to protect the
investment in various assets and to meet its financial, regulatory, and contractual obligations.
The proper management of these reserves will provide additional assurance that the current
levels of service quality and reliability will be met now and into the future.

This Reserve Policy establishes the reserve funds and the level of reserves necessary for
adequately providing for the following.

* Funding infrastructure replacement

* Cash flow requirements

= Loss of revenue due to loss of the largest customer, reduced capacity charges, drought
conditions, heavy rainfall, or other condition

=  Economic uncertainty

® Local disasters or catastrophic events

®  Unfunded mandates and regulatory changes and requirements

Reserve Funds

The District’s reserve funds may be generally classified as operating, capital, and restricted
funds. A “fund” is a segregation within the District’s accounting system to keep sources and



uses of funds easily identifiable and reportable. The funds established with this Reserve Policy
are for water and wastewater service separately.

The cash reserve balances are to be maintained in separate funds within the accounting system in
a manner that ensures accurate tracking of transactions and transparency to the District’s
ratepayers. The District will follow standardized methods of financial reporting such as
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 34 and/or No. 54.

The target reserve levels are considered to be the minimum levels for each fund. The minimum
reserve balances are intended to support a sustainable financial condition, recognizing the risk
and long-range financial planning perspective that is acceptable to the District. It is intended that
interest income generated from any specific restricted reserve fund remain in such fund until any
regulatory or contractual maximum is achieved. Once such maximum is achieved, interest
income will be allocated to the Operating Fund until it’s maximum is reached as stated in this
Reserve Policy. Reserves over the maximum are transferred to the associated Capital
Replacement Fund.

The following funds and reserve targets are established with this Reserve Policy.

Operating Fund Reserve

Purpose: The purpose of the Operating Fund Reserve is to provide working capital to meet cash
flow needs during normal operations and to support the operation, maintenance and administration
of the utility. The reserve is intended to reduce impacts from unforeseen events such as increased
purchased water cost, loss of the District’s largest customer, severe drought, heavy rainfall,
replacement of rolling stock, litigation, and legislative actions. This reserve ensures that
operations can continue should there be significant events that impact cash flows.

Target Reserve: The Target Reserve for this fund is established as a range between a minimum
of 90 days (3 months) of annual operation and maintenance (“O&M”) expense and a maximum of
270 days (9 months) of O&M. Reserves over 270 days will be transferred to the Capital
Replacement Fund Reserve at the end of a fiscal year.

Capital Replacement Fund Reserve

Purpose: The Capital Replacement Fund Reserve is used to fund future replacement of system
capital assets and capital projects and to provide a cushion for inaccuracy in the long-range capital
replacement program. The reserve provides for timely repair and replacement of system capital
facilities.

Target Reserve:  The Target Reserve for the water system is 2 times the average annual 5-year
Capital Improvement Program expenditures. For the wastewater system, the Target Reserve is
equal to the average annual 5-year Capital Improvement Program expenditures.




Capacity Fund Reserve

Purpose: The purpose of the Capacity Fund Reserve is to receive and accumulate Capacity Charge
revenue which is used to fund new development capital projects identified in the District’s capital
improvement plans.

Target Reserve: There is no specific target reserve amount established for this fund.

Emergency Capital Fund Reserve

Purpose: The purpose of the Emergency Capital Fund Reserve is to provide for recovery from
natural disasters, such as earthquakes, floods, and other catastrophic events, and allow for timely

repair of capital infrastructure.

Target Reserve: The Target Reserve amount established for this fund is 10 percent of fixed asset
value for the water system and 5 percent of fixed asset value for the wastewater system.

Rate Stabilization Fund Reserve

Purpose: The purpose of the Rate Stabilization Fund Reserve is to assist in providing a buffer
and to smooth rate increases for District customers during any period where there are unexpected
increases in operating costs or decreases in revenues. Reserves from the Rate Stabilization Fund
may be withdrawn to reduce rate increases and to ensure any minimum debt service coverage
requirements are met.

Target Reserve: The Target Reserve is established to approximately equal 10 percent of annual
rate revenues, currently about $60,000 for the water system and $80,000 for the wastewater

system.




Current Reserve and Target Reserve Summary

Reserve Targets and June 30, 2016 Reserve Balances

Reserve Reserve
Balance [ Target

]
Reserve Type E

Water System
Operating Resenve $114,000 $114,000
Capitai Replacement Resene 1,242,178 300,000
Capacity Resene 0 n/a
Emergency Capital Resene 55,000 55,000
Rate Stabilization 60,000 60,000
Total $1,471,178 $529,000
Wastewater System
Operating Resene 12 $0 $156,000
Capital Replacement Reserve 0 520,000
Capacity Resene 0 n/a
Emergency Capital Resene 0 155,000
Rate Stabilization [ 0 80,000
Total $0 $911,000

[1]As of June 30, 2016.
[2] Reserve Target based on FY 17-18 Budget.



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager
DATE: August 8, 2017

SUBJECT:  Avila Beach Community Services District
Draft Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study

Recommendation:
Receive Report and Provide Direction to Staff.

Funding:
Initial funding for this project has been provided by the District. In accordance with the District’s

Proposition 13 Water Recycling Grant Agreement, executed in March 2016, the State Water Resources
Control Board will provide reimbursement for 50% of the cost of the study, up a maximum of $75,000.
Since the scope of this study included the entire Avila Valley region, the San Miguelito Mutual Water
Company Board agreed to a 50/50 share of the remaining 50% of the study costs. The contract amount for
the study was approximately $135,000. To date the District has spent approximately $115,000.

Background:

In March 2016, the Board approved Resolution No. 2016-01, authoring the General Manager to complete the
Grant Application Process with the State Water Resources Control Board and moving ahead with the Study.
The State Board subsequently approved the application and staff worked with San Miguelito Mutual Water
Company staff and Water Systems Consulting over the last 12 months to prepare the draft Planning Study.

Discussion:
The goals of the Planning Study were to: identify, evaluate and prioritize new drought resistant recycled

water supply alternatives; Evaluate potential recycled water projects; and identify a preferred location or
locations for a future regional water recycling plant. The Study included an analysis of existing and future
regional water supply, water demand and wastewater flows along with recycled water market and
opportunities. The Study concluded that the Avila Beach Golf Course is clearly the largest commercial
irrigation user in the area (over 200 acre feet per year). The golf course’s participation is critical for a
recycled water project to make any sense. However, the golf course currently obtains a large percentage of
their irrigation water from shallow wells along San Luis Obispo Creek at a cost that is significantly less than
the incremental market rate of producing tertiary treated water suitable for unrestricted irrigation.

District staff received the draft report only a few days before publication of the August 8, meeting agenda
packet so we have not had time to provide a thorough summary. The purpose of this report is to provide the
Board with a copy of the draft Executive Summary to allow the Board members to conduct an initial review
of the information and recommendations. Staff suggests that we plan on bringing the report back at the
September Board meeting for a more thorough analysis and discussion that will lead to finalizing the Study
and provide direction for our path forward at the wastewater treatment plant.



Draft

Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study

Prepared for the

Avila Beach Community Services District

ESTABLISHED
FEB.1997

Prepared Under the Responsible Charge of:
Christopher Malejan

California R.C.E. No. 80568, Expires 03/31/2019

/
S\ ZaR
/27,2; Vo

OF cAUE

7/27/2017

—WSC

WATER SYSTEMS CONSULTING, INC.



Draft
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TaADIE O CONEEINES mirvwussmmsmnnoss usssmss sosssssisss e 6 15505 5580 TR SR USROS RE RS
LiST OF TABIES .ttt
[T o) B ST = (U SRR PP PP PPPPPPRPPPPRI
List of Terms, Acronyms, and Abbreviations.........ccccccvviiieiiiiieeniiiiec e
ACKNOWIEAZEMENTS ...ttt s e e e aiteeeeeaee

1 EXECULIVE SUMMAIY oot

1.1 Water Supply, Water Demand, and Wastewater Flows

1.2 Recycled Water Market and Opportunities .........cocceeeviieeeeniineenns
1.3 Project Alternatives Analysis .......coouuiiieireiiniiieieeeseieeee e
1.4 Recommended Facilities ProJECt ....ccousseswsivessnsssevsinasessssamssssssmsasvons

2 INErOAUCTION ottt
2.1 PrOJECE TEAM wevrerrerermrmmmmnnnnsssssnnmnmsms smmsanmsmn s s sesioiss 535550 435 68 7 5
2.2 Goals:and ‘Objectives of This STUAY wucssmuusssssssmsisssnsassaressssassins
2.3 Study Area CharacteristiCs......ouiuueeiiiiiiieeiiieiiieee e
231 LD CARIOM v nnnsmssiomssmnsansmsmmsnpmns sansbinsinssondin osinssn sups e i ms TRATS AR P A

2.3.2 =TT o]0 =] 4 o] | GG OSSN

233 Hydrologic Features. ..o

234 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act........ccccceevvveeene

3  Water Supply and CRaracteriStiCs .uu.v.emsssssnsessssamussss ruvssssusvssammsisssnssmmsasmaes
3.1 WaAtEr SUPPIY woeeeeieeeece e
3.2 WALEE QUUALTLYE 1.cn s commmnsssmmmomsmesissinnss s bmsai iesss s s vasseminia simve sy maavssns
333 Water DeMANG suusyeussssisssnmsssss sssssnssssossussssssins sssmems ey s
34 WAt PrICING it

4  Wastewater Characteristics and Facilities .........cccoeviiiiniiiiiciniiiiciiees
4.1 EXiStiNg FACHItieS. .vvvieeiieieiiiiiiiie et
4.2 Waste Discharge ReEqQUIre@MENtS .....ccooiuvieiiiiiiiiiiieiieeceiieece e
4.3 Existing and Projected Wastewater FIOWS .........ccccevviieriiniinecennne.
4.4 Existing Facility Upgrade Evaluation.........cccoceevviieiiniieniiiieee e,

5 Recycled Water Regulations and Treatment Requirements.........ccccceeueeeen.

51 Disinfected Tertiary TreatmentO.........cooveiiviiiiiiniiiciiiee e

—WSC

WATER SYsTEMS CONSULTING, INC.

Table of Contents
7/27/2017



Draft Table of Contents
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017
5.2 AdVANCE TrEATMENT ..eiiiiiiiii et 54
52.1 REVETSE: O SITIOSIS o smmnsinsmnmmnns mmns s s 5% 5 s i 55545 SHREHS 5103565 90F T8 A TR ERH DA SRR 40 650 54

5.2.2 Ultraviolet/Advanced OXidation........oeeieeiiiiieiieiee e 55

5.2.3 REUSE SEANAAITS ..ottt ettt e e s be s abae s 55

6  Recycled Water Market and OpPPOrtUNIties ....c..eecieeieiiiieeiiiiie e e e 57
6.1 Prelimifary MaTKEt ASSESSINBHIT, «uusssssns sisisssessssssssss ssvsms s o s e s s sy ins sess oA AR e sa waays 57
6.2 Hydrogeologic Assessment of Groundwater Augmentation and Recycled Water ................. 60

7 Project Alternatives ANAIYSIS ... . .-vuossssomsssssms oo esssnss 500w iy G i v s s s s R s e wssNeaes 63
7.1 Alternative 1: No Recycled Water AREINAtiVe ...cooveeeiiiiiiieiiiie et 63
7.1.1 Treatment and Facility UPGrades .....ccocviiiiiiiiiiiiieeic e 63

7.1.2 Storage, Pumping, and DiStribULioN .....cecssusssesses svenvaissssvansnsnsis onsis s asuinsisns soms s gamons i 68

7.1.3 Operational REQUITEMENTS ....ciiiii ittt 68

7.1.4 Preliminary CoSt ESTIMAte ...oouuiii ittt 69

7.1.5 Advantages and DisadVaNtABE S . su e wusews svavmassnnss i swsssi somsseainassnsssnsssetvas i3 pasesmses e 70

7.1.6 Non-Recycled Water AEIrNAtIVES ......oouviiiiieiiiieiieee e 71

7.2 Alternative 2: Disinfected Tertiary Recycled Water........c.oioiiiiieiiiiieiiiee e 72
7.2.1 Treatmentiand Facility UPBrades « .. aammmimimsiminmm avimesmms s s 75

1:2:2 Storage, Pumping, and Distribution ..........ccooviieiiiiiiii e 80

7.2.3 Operational REQUINEMENTS ......ciuii ittt ettt e et e e ere e e e e 91

7.2.4 Preliminary COSt ESTIMATE .. euws cussiss susmnes ssmsens sasvins oo hwwsn svanmas s sisssuanessssnsss dosiarsonsnm suboes 91

7.2.5 Advantages and DisadVantages.....ccccuiueeiieriiiiieiiie et 93

7.3 Alternative 3: Regional Advanced Treatment and Groundwater Augmentation ................... 95
7.3.1 Treatment and Facllity UPETatles vuuessrrseon s cximnsmsmanssesmssssntss oo sas svusss svasss s usssmss 95

7:3:2 Storage, Pumping, and Distribution ........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 96

7.3.3 Operational REQUIrEMENTS .....oo it e e e 99

7.3.4 Preliminary COSt ESTIMETE .o iwusarmususs ssusucs sisssisnssnsiassssussnessnnes aassvis i sisnsndsssinss sxissvassinanss 99

7.3.5 Advantages and DisadVantagesS....c.iouiireieiiiiiiiiiie e 100

7.4 NO PrOJECE AILEITIATIVE .. voveieonsemnsasns sonss socemnnssns smannas s ssnsmss ssmsssi s s s, s 46 55 S5 55883 R AR A SR SN FRRRE T HSE 100
75 Sustainable Water Resource Management and State Planning Priorities.........ccccccconiiennn. 101
7.5.1 Sustainable Water Resource Management Priorities .......ccccoouviieiiiiiiniiicceiiiiiiiinncnenn, 101

7.5.2 At PlaN NG Pl OTTEIOS o esssnnenssarnnnsassassonssnsiosnesss ss snsie s s sassss o F44 o058 75 04 6o A HHs P TRONS E TS 103

7.6 Water Conservation/Reduction ANAlYSiS .......cuieiiieeiieiiieceie e 105

—WSC

WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC.



Draft Table of Contents

Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017
7.6.1 IMPACt 0N RECYCIEA WATET ..ottt e e s eenaenee 107
7.7 Alternative Comparison and Recommended AIternative .........ccooceeevieriicniiicnieeniie e 107
8 Recommended Project & Implementation Plan .........cooeieiiiiiiiiiniieie e 111
8.1 Preferred AREINATIVE. ... cii ittt 111
8.1.1 Proposed Regional Facility and CONVEYaANCE .......cocveiiriiiiiiiiiie e 111
8.1.2 FACIIItY DESIGN . .ic s csisuscvssiusssmves swows s ssssims s vmion 55w 48 550388003 8 45 00000 FRRERESH PR S S W B S oo 113
8.1.3 Recycled Water Customers, Schedule, and Cost Estimate........ccccovveveeviiiiiiiiiieciniinnns 113
8.2 IMPIEMENTATION PIaN ..uiiiiiiii e e e e e s e e e e e e e e 114
8.2.1 Coordination ANt GOVEIFTIATIEE svurrssssuseussnnnessamssvs s smresas s s s s TS s s se s 114
8.2.2 Tentative Water Recycling Requirements and Permitting.........ccccevvveeiviiineiiincnnnnnns 115
8.2.3 Detailed SCREUIE.......coviiie e s 116
8.2.4 OPEratioNa] PlaN i smssssssssoomssnmssasssussmsmssssssnsasts s s a8 s 85 as o s s s s sy 116
9 Construction FINANCINE PIan ......coo oot e e e e et e e e e e s e e e e e e eaaeeeeas 117
9.1 Annual Operating BUABET.......uuuiiiiiiee e e 117
9.1.1 RECYTIEE WATET WSB! .ciusiunssmmisnisnsnsnnsmssnsssnnssssssnsiss s ss 188558 505 650 SE800 35 50345 40 58 DA ARTHS W iR 8005 53 117 |
9.1.2 600 1) £ PP PP 118
9.2 OULSIAE FUNGING SOUICES ..oiiiitiiiiieiiiie ettt ettt e e e itee e e sta e e st e e et e e e e beeesebbeeesneeeeeennbeeeeees 118
10 32T ] 1= 0 = 120
Appendix A - Waste Discharge Requirements for the Avila Beach Community Services District
Wastewater Treatment Facility (Order No. R3-2009-0055, NPDES No. CAO047830).....ccccveereeerveeienennnn A-1
Appendix B - Proposed Waste Discharge Requirements for the Avila Beach Community Services District
Wastewater Treatment Facility (Draft Order No. R3-2017-0025, NPDES No. CA0O047830)......ccccuveercunnnns B-1
Appendix C - Waste Discharge Requirements for San Miguelito Mutual Water Company Wild Cherry
Chanyon Sewage Treatment Plant San Luis Obispo County (Order NO. 95-57)....ccccveiireiiieiieecieecieeeenn C-1
Appendix D - RECYCIEA Water OVEIVIEW ...couuviiiiiiieeiiiie ettt ettt et e e s e e e e e s e D-1
Appendix E = Plahning LeVel CoSt ESTIMATES . uususssnusssssursssssusssssnsmessssas dswisinesnssas vussds x5 3 6555 4xns 55 s g s i sn E-1
Appendix E - FACIlity ASSUM PRIONS: .o ssiusios s smvssie oaorvassssesss s s o5 e s sy 17 i o5 s insmyss s e iss s smass F-1
Appendix G - Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge AsSeSSMENt .......ccuveiiivieriiiiieeiiiiie e G-1
Appendix H - Recycled Water Treatment and RegUIATIONS .......cooiiiiiiieiiiiiiiie e H-1

—=WSC

WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC.



Draft List of TablesTable of Contents

Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017
LIST OF TABLES

Table 1-1: Buildout Water and Wastewater Characteristics for the District and SMMWC .........cceeuveen... 10
Table 1-2. Potential Recycled Water CUSTOMEIS.......oiviiuiiieeeceee et ee e e eeees 13
Table 1-3: AIRErNatives SUMMAIY ......cuiiiiiieieieieisie sttt sttt ae et et a et eseesseteseeses s eseeenneanea 17
Table 1-4. Preliminary DESIZN Criteria.....ccciiiiiiiieiieeite ittt ettt s e e st e et e e eneseeesaeeeeeeanes 18
Table 1-5. Preliminary Implementation SCheAUIE..........c.oiiviiiiiieece et e s 19
Table 1-6. Implementation COSt EStIMate......ccuiiiiiiiiie ittt et eee e e e e 19
Table 2-1: Summary of Service Area and Water CONNECLIONS ......c.eevieieueieieeieeeeee et ee e 24
Table 2-2: Avila Region POpulation PrOJECTIONS .......cc.cveiuieieieieiecee ettt ettt eee e e e 24
Table 2-3: Beneficial Uses of San Luis ObISPO Cre@K (8).....ccieueeiiueeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 25
Table 3-1: District Water SUPPIY SUMMAIY .....oo.iiiiiiiiieecee ettt et eaeeeeeeeene 26
Table 3-2: Water SUpply Variability (1) ...oocoioioe ettt eee e ee e 27
Table 3-3: SMMWC Water Sources 2009-2014........cuiieiueieeereeeeire ettt se st eee st e e e eeeeeeeeeeeneens 27
Table 3-4: SMMWC Worst-Case Scenario Water SUPPIY (2) ...eveeeeeeoeeeeeeee e 31
Table 3-5: Avila Valley Water SUPPIY .ooveoe ettt ettt ettt ee e et e eeeeans 31
Table 3-6: Average Groundwater Quality at Wells in the Avila Region (11) .....cccoeveveeieoreeeeeeeeeeeeeeenen, 32
Table 3-7: Surface Water Quality in the Avila Region (2010-2015) ..c.eovevveiueireeieeieieieeeeeeeeeeee e 33
Table 3-8: Water Demand for the District (2014-2016) (1) (14) (15) cueeeevieveiiieeeeeeeee e, 33
Table 3-9: Demand Projections for the DISTFCE (1) ...c.iveveieeiieieiceeeeeeeeee ettt et e e 34
Table 3-10: SMMWC Historic Demand by Usage 2009-2015......c..cveeeiuiieieiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeenens 34
Table 3-11: SMMWC Water Demand at BUildOUt .........c.oovieuiieeiiieeieece et 35
Table 3-12: District Monthly Rate Structure as of JUIY 1, 2015 ....eiiuiieeieeeeeeeee e eeeee e 36
Table 3-13: SMMWC 2016 Water and SEWET RAES......c.ciuiiiuiiieiiiiiecieiesie ettt 37
Table 4-1. Current Effluent Limitations for Conventional Pollutants at Discharge Point No. 001 (18)....... 44
Table 4-2: Proposed NPDES Effluent Limitations Under Draft Order No. R3-2017-0025 ......c.ccvvvveevunnnnnn. 45
Table 4-3: SMMWC Waste Discharge REQUIFEMENTS .......c.ccuiiieeirieeeeiecie i seeeeeee ettt e e e e 45
Table 4-4. District Effluent FIOWS, 2011 - 2005 ....ooouiiiiiiiieeeeceee ettt e e e e e e e e e s eaeeee e e 46
Table 4-5: Average Annual Wastewater Flow for the District at BuildoUt...........cooveeuveiieiieeiieeieeeeeeen, 47
Table 4-6: SMMWC and Sycamore Mineral Springs Resort Influent Wastewater Flow 2011-2015........... 47
Table 4-7: Wastewater GENEration FACTOI .. ...cuiiiiiiiiiieiii ettt ettt et e e e ee e e e eee s 49
Table 4-8. Projected Recycled Water Availability ...........ccoueovuiiiiiieie i 49
Table 4-9: Wastewater Flow and Strength in KJ STUAY (21) ...eooviiieeeeieieee e, 50
Table 5-1: Indirect Potable REUSE STANAAIdS .......c.ciiiiiiieiieieecee et 56
Table 6-1. Potential Recycled Water CUSTOMETS. ......ccuviiiueeireieee ettt ettt eee ettt e e eeeeeeeeeens 58
Table 7-1: No Recycled Water Alternative Costs - DISTIICT .......cveuiieieerieieeiee it 69
Table 7-2: Potential Additional Non-Recycled Water Supply Sources for SMMWC (2) ....vevvvvveeeeeieeeennn. 71
Table 7-3: Proposed IrTIGatiON USEIS......cc.ciuiiuieeieiiieereete e eteecteetie ettt et eae ettt e eeeae e e e e e st eeeeeeeeeeaeesaeens 74
Table 7-4: Recycled Water Conveyance Infrastructure Required for Alternative 2A ........ccccoevveeeeveeneeannn. 82
Table 7-5: Recycled Water Infrastructure Required for AIlternative 2B .......c.ccvvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 85
Table 7-6: Recycled Water Infrastructure Required for Alternative 2C.......cocueoviieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen 88
Table 7-7: Recycled Water Infrastructure Required for Alternative 2D.........c.cccoovveieeiiieeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeenn 89

=WSC

WATER SysTems CONSULTING, INC.



Draft List of TablesTable of Contents

Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017
Table 7-8: Cost SUummary for AIYETNATIVE 2w isversesinassvonssssss svevsss ivesvssdossaim iississinssis ionis s st donindises sonnpsare 92
Table 7-9: Required Conveyance Infrastructure for AIRernative 3.......cccoeeveiiiiceieeicee e 97
Table 7-10: Construction Cost Estimate for AIternative 3 ........cocveviieeii et 99
Table 7-11: AREIrNAtiVES SUMIMAIY ..occuiiiiiie ettt ettt e et e et e ete e e et e e eateesateeeaseeessneeeneeeeeeans 108
Table 8-1. Preliminary DESIZN Crit@IIa. . .c..eeiueecreeeerieeieeeetee ettt et etee e eteeeeete e et e e et e eteesetee e enteeeeteesaeeeeeeans 113
Table 8-2. Group 1 RECYCIEA Water USEIS.......civiiieeieiie ettt ettt et ettt et ae e eveeeteeeaeeebeenaneeans 113
Table 8-3. Preliminary Implementation SChedule...........couooiviiiiiiiii e e 114
Table 8-4. Implementation CoSt ESTIMate.......cccuiiiiiiiiiiccie ettt et e e e 114
Table 9-1. Annual OpPerating BUAZET.........cooiieiiie ettt ettt ettt e et teeeareeaeeea 117
Table 9-2. Summary of Relevant Grant and LO@Nn PrOgrams ......c..covieeiueeeeueeecieeeeiee e et e eeaie e 119
Table D-1. Key Recycled Water Policy COMPONENTS ......cccveiiiiieeiiieciieeciee sttt seaee e D-1
Table E-2. Capital Cost EStimating ASSUMPTIONS ....ccuuiiiiiieiiieiieecteectee ettt s et e e eaeeeeeeee e E-2
Table E-3. Cost EStimating ASSUMPTIONS ...ccciuviiiiieiiuieeieeecteeeeree et et e eetee e et e eeteeeeaeeeeaeeesteesereeeereeesaeeeeaeans E-3
Table F-4: Recycled Facility Planning and Design Criteria..........cccuveiuieiiiieeeeiiiiee e e e eee e e F-2
Table H-1: Secondary Treatment Standards and USEs (23) ....ccvieiieeieiei et H-1
Table H-2: Equivalent to Secondary Treatment Standards (23)......ccceeeiireiieicie e H-1
Table H-3. Key Components of the SWRCB RW POJICY......c.eeiiiiiiiiiiiicciie ettt H-6
Table H-4: Central Coast Basin Plan Irrigation Water Quality Criteriat...........ccovvevveeerereseeeereeseee e, H-9
Table H-5 Basin Plan Water Quality OBJECHIVES ......ccceeiiiiiiiciieecree sttt e ebe e re s s H-11

—=WSC :

WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC.



Draft List of FiguresTable of Contents

Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017
LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1-1: Map Of the STUAY ATa ..c..cuiiuiieiciei ettt ettt ettt et e et et e e e eeaes 12
FIBUIe 1-2: RECYCIEA Water GrOUDS. .cueciuieereeeie ettt ettt ettt s e et ee et et e e et e et e eeeeereeeee e e 14
Figure 2-1. Land Use in the AVila REZION (3)..uiiiuiiiiiiiiiiecireeeticceie ettt et e eee e et e e eeeeens 21
Figure 2-2: Avila Region Water Purveyors and StUAY Ar€a .......c.eecueicuieceeieie it eee e e 22
Figure 3-1: Groundwater Basin Designations in the Avila Valley..........cocoooiiiiioiioieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 29
Figure 3-2: SMMWC Groundwater Well LOCations (11)....cuecuieiieiuieiieeee et e e 30
Figure 4-1: Ocean OULall LOCATION .....cuiiiiiiieiticcie ettt ettt ettt et et e eeteee e e e 40
Figure 4-2: Existing Treatment Plant Process FIOW Diagram (17) .c..coueeeeieeieeeeee e ereea e 41
Figure 4-3. SMMWC WWTP Process FIOW DIiagram ........ccceeiuieiueiieeeee et ne e e 42
Figure 4-4: Aerial View of SMIMWC'S WWTP ......oiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt eeee e eaeeeaee e 43
Figure 4-5: Seasonal Variation in Average Monthly Flow for the District (19) ...c.cooovevveieieeeeeeeeeee e, 46
Figure 4-6: Seasonal Variation in Average Monthly Flow for SMMW(C and Sycamore Mineral Springs
RESOTE (210) s s0vvssssmessunnunssnans iasssnans 45 sansnsnas sannoans nssas nrssssnesses mas os o5 aboa setan o s wes m s sbansea s s v saseeesssasssns sasaasins 48
Figure 4-7: Proposed Site Plan for District WWTP Upgrade (21) ...c.eooeeeeeieeeeeeee e 51
Figure 5-1: General Recycled Water Classifications and Treatment Requirements .........ccoovveeeveeeeeeeennn, 53
Figure 6-1: Recycled Water Group LOCAtIONS.......cucuiiieiieeeeie ettt ettt eeeeeeee e 59
Figure 6-2. Harford Canyon Plan VIEW (CHG).......co.ioiiiiiiiiiecee ettt ettt e e s 61
Figure 6-3. Harford Canyon Cross SECION (CHG) .......covivuiiueiieiie ettt ettt e e eeeee e 62
Figure 7-1: No Recycled Water Alternative Process Flow Diagram for the DistriCt........ccccceeeveeeieeceesennnnn. 64
Figure 7-2: No Recycled Water Alternative - District WWTP UPErades.......c.cocuvveieieeeeeeeieeeeeeeeseeseennans 65
Figure 7-3: No Recycled Water Alternative for SMMWC (Source: Google Earth) ........ccoeeveoveeeeeveaennnn. 68
Figure 7-4: Process Flow Diagram for AIREINAtive 2A ........oueiuei ittt ee e eeeeaeen e 76
Figure 7-5: Alternative 2A — Proposed Upgrades to the District's WWTP .......coveuiiiiieireeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen 77
Figure 7-6: Alternative 2A - Proposed Upgrades to SMMWC'S WWTP.......cuiieiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseneaans 78
Figure 7-7: Process Flow Diagram for Alternative 2B, 2C, and 2D .......c.ooouriiiieiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 79
Figure 7-8: Alternative 2A Recycled Water CONVEYANCE. ........c.eecuuiiueiiieeeeeeeeeeee et eeteeeee e e eeeeaeeeaeas 81
Figure 7-9: Alternative 2B Recycled Water CONVEYANCE .......ooueiieieeeeeeee et eeeeseee e 84
Figure 7-10: Alternative 2C Recycled Water CONVEYANCE .........c.vivveeueieeeie ettt et eeesee s 87
Figure 7-11: Alternative 2D Recycled Water CONVEYANCE .........cc.uiiueiieeieieeeee oottt eeee e eeeeeenas 90
Figure 7-12: Process Flow Diagram for Groundwater AUgmMeNntation............couevoeeoeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseneaans 96
Figure 7-13: Conveyance Infrastructure for Alternative 3 .........cccoooovieveiieiceeeeeeeeeen S — 98
Figure 8-1: Map Of Preferred AREINatiVe . .....cc.iiue ettt e e eeeeeae s 112
Figure H-1: Treatment Level CoNSIderations..........oiuiiiuiiueeieecee ettt ee s H-3
Figure H-2: Disposal/Beneficial Use Regulatory Process Overview Diagram...........cocooveeeevecveveeceseereenns H-5

—WSC )

WATER SysTems CONSULTING, INC.



Draft List of Terms, Acronyms, and AbbreviationsTable of Contents
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017

LIST OF TERMS, ACRONYMS, AND ABBREVIATIONS
Below is the list of abbreviations found in this report and their definitions, in alphabetical order.

Abbreviation Definition

AACE Association for the Advancement of Cost Engineering
Average dry weather flow

Acre feet per month

AFY Acre feet per year

Agricultural beneficial use

Advanced oxidation process

AVMWC Avila Valley Mutual Water Company
Basin Plan Water Quality Control Plan for the Central Coast Basin
BOD Biochemical oxygen demand
CASGEM California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring
CCR California Code of Regulations
CEC Constituent of Emerging Concern
California Environmental Quality Act
CFR Code of Federal Regulations
CH Cleath-Harris Geologists, Inc.
CIMIS California Irrigation Management Information System
coLD Cold Fresh Water Habitat

COMM Commercial and Sport Fishing

CSA 12 San Luis Obispo County Service Area 12
W Clean Water Act

Division of Drinking Water

Avila Beach Community Services District

Direct potable reuse

Department of Water Resources

Electrical conductivity

Environmental Impact Report

Fixed film reactor

Funding Opportunity Announcement

Fluid Resource Management

Freshwater Replenishment

Full time equivalent

Groundwater Ambient Monitoring and Assessment

Graphic Information System

Gallons per day

Gallons per minute

Groundwater Recharge

Home owners’ association

Indirect potable reuse

Lopez Water Surface water from San Luis Obispo County Lopez Reservoir

Membrane bioreactor

>

m
(@]

0
(9)

T
o

—WSC

WATER SYsTEMS CONSULTING, INC.



Draft List of Terms, Acronyms, and AbbreviationsTable of Contents
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017

MCL Maximum contaminant level
Million gallons per day
Migration of Aquatic Organisms
Mixed liquor suspended solids
Most Probable Number
Municipal and Domestic Supply
N-nitrosodimethylamine
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System
Operation and maintenance
Port San Luis

Return activated sludge

Water Contact Recreation
Reverse osmosis

Report of Waste Discharge

RWC Recycled water contribution
RW Master Plan 2004 Water Reuse Master Plan
RWQCB Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board
Sodium absorption ratio
SAT Soil aquifer treatment
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
SLO San Luis Obispo
SLOCFC San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District
SMMWC San Miguelito Mutual Water Company

Salt and Nutrient Management Plan
Sphere of Influence

Spawning, Reproduction, and/or Early Development
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study
State Water Project

State Water Resources Control Board
Total dissolved solids

Total suspended solids

United States Bureau of Reclamation
United States Department of Agriculture
Ultraviolet

Warm Fresh Water Habitat

Waste Discharge Requirement

Water Recycling Funding Program
Water resource recovery facility

Water Systems Consulting, Inc.
Wastewater treatment plant

O
(7}

<

=

s
3

—=WSC

WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC.



Draft AcknowledgementsTable of Contents
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study for Avila Beach Community Services District was [action
taken TBD] by the Avila Beach Community Services District Board of Directors on [date TBD] and the San
Miguelito Mutual Water Company Board of Directors on [date TBD].

Avila Beach Community Services District Board of Directors

Peter Kelley, President Lynn Helenius, Vice President
Eric DeWeese, Director Ara Najarian, Director
Kristin Berry, Director

San Miguelito Mutual Water Company Board of Directors

John Delehant, President Ben Banks, Vice President

Rob Rossi, Director Vic Montgomery, Director

The Study was prepared by Water Systems Consulting, Inc. The primary authors are listed below.

Water Systems Consulting, Inc.

Adam Donald, MS, EIT Emily Iskin, EIT, ENV SP
Christopher Malejan, MS, PE, PMP Joshua Reynolds, MS, PE
Daniel Heimel, MS, PE Jeffery Szytel, MS, MBA, PE

Laine Carlson, PE

Cleath-Harris Geologists, Inc.

Timothy Cleath, PG, CHG, CEG

Water Systems Consulting, Inc. would like to acknowledge the significant contributions of the following
Avila Beach Community Services District and San Miguelito Mutual Water Company staff:

Brad Hagemann, PE, Avila Beach Community Services District General Manager

Rick Koon, PE, San Miguelito Mutual Water Company General Manager

Funding for this project has been provided in full or in part through an agreement with the State Water
Resources Control Board. The contents of this document does not necessarily reflect the views and
policies of the State Water Resources Control Board, nor does mention of trade names or commercial

products constitute endorsement or recommendation for use.

—WSC :

WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC.



Draft 1. Executive Summary
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Avila Beach Community Services District (District), in partnership with the San Miguelito Mutual
Water Company (SMMW(C), hired Water Systems Consulting, Inc. (WSC) to conduct this Recycled Water
Facilities Planning Study (Study) to develop and evaluate alternatives for recycled water production and
use in the Avila Valley within the District’s Sphere of Influence (SOI).

The recycled water goals for this Study are:

1. Identify, screen and prioritize new drought-resistant recycled water supply alternatives to
enhance regional water supply reliability;
Evaluate regional recycled water projects based on economic and non-economic factors; and
Identify the preferred location for a future regional wastewater treatment plant in order to
address aging infrastructure and the long-term sustainability of wastewater treatment in the

SOl

The District and SMMW(C each have their own wastewater treatment plants (WWTPs) that treat
wastewater from their respective service areas. There have been no prior recycled water initiatives
within the Avila Valley. The purpose of this Study is to evaluate feasible recycled water alternatives that
would diversify the Avila Valley’s water supply portfolio, provide a drought-resistant source of supply,
and create opportunities for shared regional facilities and collaboration. This Study was funded in part
by a grant from the California State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Water Recycling Funding
Program (WRFP).

1.1 WATER SUPPLY, WATER DEMAND, AND WASTEWATER FLOWS

The water supply, buildout water demand, and wastewater flows for the District and SMMWC are
presented in Table 1-1. At full surface water allocation (i.e. State Water Project (SWP) Table A and Lopez
Reservoir), each water purveyor has sufficient supply to meet buildout demands. However, full
allocation is rarely achieved, especially during drought conditions. The District has purchased a 100 acre-
feet per year (AFY) drought buffer to supplement their Table A SWP allocation, which has historically
been delivered at approximately 62% of the maximum Table A allocation but has been as low as 5%.

Table 1-1: Buildout Water and Wastewater Characteristics for the District and SMMWC

Water
- Water Supply* (AFY) Demand Wastewater Flow (gpd/AFY)?
(AFY)

District 81,300/91.1

SMMWC 128,280/144
209,580/235

Notes:
! Water supply includes historical groundwater production levels and full allocation of all surface water supplies

2 gpd = gallons per day

—WSC ?

WATER SysTEms CONSULTING, INC.



Draft 1. Executive Summary
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017

During dry years, the District is expected to face supply deficits at buildout according to WSC's Water
Resources Analysis Technical Memorandum (1). This deficit can be as high as 37 AFY if buildout demand
does not change due to drought conditions (1). SMMW(C’s worst case scenario water supply was
conservatively estimated as 216.5 AFY by Garing Taylor & Associates in their Water Resources Analysis,
indicating a potential supply shortfall of 85 AFY at buildout conditions (2). Recycled water production
could provide an opportunity to meet this potential supply shortfall.

1.2 RECYCLED WATER MARKET AND OPPORTUNITIES

Currently, no recycled water is produced in the Study Area, which is defined as the District’s SOI (Figure
1-1), therefore a new market and new recycled water customers were identified as part of this Study.
Potential recycled water production was also estimated. Projected recycled water availability at buildout
for the District is approximately 91 AFY (based on 2014-2016 average annual wastewater generation
data available), for SMMWC is approximately 144 AFY (based on 2009-2015 average annual wastewater
generation data available), and combined is approximately 235 AFY.

For the purposes of this Study, the Project Team only evaluated potential recycled water demand from
customers within the District’'s and SMMW(C's service areas that had existing irrigation meters or had
large demands (i.e. the Avila Beach Golf Course). Since these customers have sufficient demand for the
recycled water generated, there was no need to expand the market analysis. Additionally, by focusing
on just the District’s and SMMW(C's service areas, interagency agreements necessary for the
implementation of the recycled water alternatives can be streamlined.

Potential customers were categorized into one of four recycled water groups based on their location, in
an effort to optimize distribution piping. Groups 1-4 are shown in Figure 1-2. All identified users require
disinfected tertiary recycled water at a minimum, as the end uses include residential landscaping, a park,
and an unrestricted access golf course. The market for potable reuse via groundwater augmentation
includes all potable water customers who receive drinking water from groundwater wells (i.e. SMMWC's

service area).

—WSC "

WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC.



Draft

1. Executive Summary

Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017
L% ¥
[L 9 (" {
Vis 69.9 QO 4 s
©) e
San Luis San Luis ‘ 4
Obispo Obispo dots
County '
fiot
i ]
SMM\/‘VC WWTP
-
Legend
® VWWTPs
¥ K District SO
| San Miguelito Mutual Water Company
Avila Beach CSD
Avila Valley Mutual Water Company
[ 18LO County Service Area No.12
_ Sycamore Mineral Springs Resort
E
3 0 0.375 0.75 \
ﬁ . .
E [ Miles A
= Avila Valley Regional Recycled Water Study o
| iE —=WSC
B = WATER SYsTEMS CONSUITING, INC.

—WSC

WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC.

Figure 1-1: Map of the Study Area

12



Draft

Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study

Table 1-2. Potential Recycled Water Customers

Potential Customer Use Type

Avila Beach Golf
Course

San Luis Bay Inn
Avila Beach Park
Avila Village
Avila Bay Club

Pelican Point Home
Owners’ Association
(HOA)

Mallard Green HOA
Indian Hill HOA
Skylark HOA

Kingfisher HOA

Heron Crest HOA

Note:

SMMWC

SMMWC

District

SMMWC

SMMWC

SMMWC

SMMWC

SMMWC

SMMWC

SMMWC

SMMWC

Commercial
Irrigation
Commercial
Irrigation
Commercial
Irrigation
Commercial
Irrigation
Commercial
Irrigation

Residential
Irrigation

Residential
Irrigation
Residential
Irrigation
Residential
Irrigation
Residential
Irrigation
Residential
Irrigation

1. Executive Summary

7/27/2017
Demand (AFY)! | Water Group
207 il
5.9 1
0.06 1
4.4 2
0.82 2
10.1 2
3.7 2
5.8 3
25 3
0.33 3
0.43 4

240 :

1. Potential demand is the anticipated recycled water demand for each customer. It was
estimated using average consumption data from 2011-2015 for each customer, as measured
by irrigation meters, with the exception of the golf course. Golf course irrigation demand was

estimated using evapotranspiration and precipitation data from the California Irrigation
Management Information System (CIMIS). Additional information is provided in Section 6.1.
Due to the seasonality of wastewater flows and water demands, not all of the potential
demand can be met through recycled water.

—WSC

WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC.

13






Draft 1. Executive Summary
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017

1.3 PROJECT ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS

Based on discussions with the District and SMMW(C (collectively the Project Team) at the Alternatives
Development Workshop on December 20, 2016, a total of three alternatives were identified to be
further developed and evaluated within this Study. During the Alternatives Evaluation Workshop on
June 9, 2017, WSC worked with the Project Team to refine Alternatives 2A, 2B, and 2C into a new
alternative that is presented as Alternative 2D. These alternatives are:

Alternative 1: No Recycled Water Alternative
Alternative 2: Disinfected Tertiary Recycled Water, with 4 sub-alternatives:

a. Individual Tertiary Facilities: upgrade both the District’'s and SMMWC’s wastewater
treatment plants to produce tertiary recycled water for unrestricted landscape
irrigation.

b. Regional Tertiary Water Resource Recovery Facility (WRRF) at Wild Cherry Canyon:
construct a new regional WRRF along the Wild Cherry Canyon access road that will
produce disinfected tertiary recycled water for unrestricted landscape irrigation.

c. Regional Tertiary WRRF at Cave Landing: construct a new regional WRRF at the Chevron
site near Cave Landing Road that will produce disinfected tertiary recycled water for
unrestricted landscape irrigation.

d. Regional Tertiary WRRF at Existing SMMWC Site: construct a new regional WRRF on
SMMW(C's existing site in Wild Cherry Canyon to produce disinfected tertiary recycled
water for unrestricted landscape irrigation.

3. Alternative 3: Regional Advanced Treatment at Wild Cherry Canyon: construct a new regional
WRREF along the Wild Cherry Canyon access road that will produce advanced treated recycled
water for groundwater augmentation.

It should be noted that none of the alternatives were analyzed in terms of flood risk, which leads to the

recommendation of additional analysis in Section 8.
Alternative 1 assumes the following conditions:

e Maintenance of secondary treatment levels at both the District’'s and SMMW(C’s wastewater
treatment plants (WWTPs);

e Additional redundancy at the District’'s WWTP in the form of a new aeration tank based on prior
analysis by Kennedy-Jenks; and

e Maintenance of status quo at SMMW(C’'s WWTP as no previous analysis has been completed for
necessary treatment plant upgrades.

Alternative 1 is an important component of this Study because it establishes a baseline against which to
compare the other alternatives and ultimately decide whether to invest future funds in improvements
to existing infrastructure, new facilities, or a new joint regional WRRF.

Alternative 1 has several advantages compared to the other options, those advantages include that it is
the cheapest to construct and operate as it requires minimal construction, no new conveyance
infrastructure, and no additional staff. Operations staff also have the greatest understanding of this

—WSC "

WATER SysTems CONSULTING, INC.



Draft 1. Executive Summary
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017

alternative as they have been operating their respective systems for years and are familiar with the
required operations and maintenance tasks. However, the disadvantages of Alternative 1 are significant
and include no water resource recovery or water supply diversification, leaving the Avila Valley more
susceptible to drought conditions with the potential for water supply shortages (see Section 3).
Additionally, under Alternative 1, no steps are taken to address the uncertain long term sustainability of
the current wastewater treatment strategy for the Avila Valley. Alternative 1 does not address risks
associated with aging infrastructure, flooding, or long term regulatory compliance. Unlike the other
alternatives evaluated as part of this Study, Alternative 1, does not provide regional benefits and does

not provide cost sharing or partnering opportunities.

Alternative 2 investigates the production and use of disinfected tertiary recycled water for irrigation
within the Study Area. Irrigation demand within the Study Area comes primarily from an unrestricted-
access golf course, food crops, and residential landscaping. These types of irrigation require recycled
water to meet disinfected tertiary standards. Alternative 2 is divided into 4 sub-alternatives to
determine the optimal method for providing disinfected tertiary recycled water to the Avila Valley.
Alternative 2A (Individual Tertiary Facilities) involves upgrading each existing WWTP to meet disinfected
tertiary standards. Alternative 2B (Regional Tertiary WRRF at Wild Cherry Canyon), Alternative 2C
(Regional Tertiary WRRF at Cave Landing), and Alternative 2D (Regional Tertiary WRRF at SMMWC
existing site) each involve the construction of a new regional WRRF that produces disinfected tertiary
recycled water. These regional facilities include the same level of treatment and plant design but are
sited at different locations to analyze impacts on conveyance and distribution of recycled water.

Advantages of Alternative 2 include an increase in system reliability and robustness with the addition of
treatment processes and increase in effluent water quality. All sub-alternatives of Alternative 2 provide
a drought-resistant water supply via water resource recovery, and thus reduce potable water demand.
Disinfected tertiary treatment is also most likely to meet future permit requirements for the region. The
siting locations of Alternatives 2A and 2D are advantageous because no additional land would have to be
acquired for the treatment process, and existing infrastructure and knowledge could be leveraged at the
sites. Alternative 2 also has potential for cost-sharing, regional collaboration, and partnering in the Avila
Valley. Disadvantages of Alternative 2 include the significant amount of conveyance infrastructure
required to deliver recycled water. Specifically, Alternative 2A would require that operations remain
functional during construction at both facilities, and would result in duplicate efforts at the two plants.
Additionally, Alternative 2A requires more conveyance pipeline and potentially redundant operations
and maintenance tasks. Alternative 2C’s site is in the California Coastal Zone, a characteristic which will

most likely lead to additional regulatory requirements.

Under Alternative 3, the District and SMMWC would augment their potable water supply through
indirect potable reuse (IPR). This type of potable reuse would involve treating the wastewater to tertiary
standards, further treating the water via advanced purification, percolating it into a groundwater
aquifer, and extracting the water downstream as potable water supply.

Advantages of Alternative 3 include increased system reliability and robustness with the addition of the
advanced treatment train. This alternative is also unique in that it maximizes resource recovery and adds

—WSC °

WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC.



Draft 1. Executive Summary
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017

a drought-resistant potable water supply to the region’s water supply portfolio. This alternative
augments the groundwater supply and reduces consumption of imported water. Alternative 3 also
presents the opportunity for cost-sharing, regional collaboration, and partnering. However, Alternative
3, has the highest cost of all the alternatives analyzed. It also requires the most advanced treatment
plant, more experienced/higher trained staff, and the most involved permitting process.

Table 1-3 summarizes the alternatives’ recycled water yield and total project costs. For more detailed
cost tables and assumptions, please refer to Section 7 and - Planning Level Cost Estimates.

Table 1-3: Alternatives Summary

Alternative  Alternative  Alternative  Alternative Alternative Alternative 3:
1: No 2A: 2B: Regional 2C: Regional 2D: Regional Regional
Recycled Individual Tertiary Tertiary Tertiary WRRF Advanced

Water Tertiary WRREF at WRRF at at SMMWC Treatment
Facilities Wild Cherry Cave Site and

Canyon Landing Groundwater

Augmentation

$2,520,000 $12,180,000 $31,590,000 $33,020,000  $32,760,000  $49,760,000

Existing O&M" $865,000 $865,000 = . = S

Project O&M $66,000 $822,000 $1,470,000 $1,510,000 $1,480,000 $2,440,000

2::i:::'éigtz $150,000 $700,000 $1,830,000  $1,910,000 $1,890,000 $2,880,000
Z::':::i’:sta $1,081,000 $2,387,000  $3,300,000  $3,420,000  $3,370,000 $5,320,000

s::uzrese"t $23,320,000 $48,850,000 $61,320,000 $63,450,000 $62,470,000  $99,360,000

Recycled
Water
Delivered
(AFY)*
Incremental
Unit Cost $13,100
($/AF)°

Notes:
. Existing operation and maintenance (O&M) costs were provided by the District and SMMWC.

? Annualized capital costs are calculated over 30 years at an interest rate of 4%.

0 170 170 170 170 176

$13,800 $13,500 $24,100

? Equivalent annual cost includes annualized capital costs, and existing and Project O&M costs.
* Recycled water delivered is assumed to be for Recycled Water Group 1 for Alternative 2A-2D.
> Incremental unit cost is the cost per acre foot of recycled water above the No Recycled Water Alternative.

Table 1-3 shows that all of the recycled water alternatives are costly. In this Study, cost is less of a
project driver than risk reduction related to aging infrastructure, water supply reliability, and long term

wastewater treatment sustainability.

17

—WSC

WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC.



Draft 1. Executive Summary
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017

1.4 RECOMMENDED FACILITIES PROJECT

Alternative 2D, refined from Alternatives 2B and 2C, was chosen as the preferred project alternative by
the Project Team during the Alternatives Evaluation Workshop. It includes a regional tertiary recycled
water WRRF that would treat wastewater from the District’s and SMMW(C's service areas for beneficial
use. Under this alternative, the plant would be located at the site of SMMWC's current wastewater
treatment plant. This siting location is preferable because no additional land has to be acquired for the
treatment process, and existing infrastructure and knowledge could be leveraged at the site. Alternative
2D provides the additional benefit of a regional solution with cost-sharing potential. Group 1 was
selected as the preferred recycled water user group because the high economic costs outweighed the
minor increase in recycled water demand from serving the other potential user groups. WSC
recommends, however, that a site-specific hydrologic study be prepared as part of the environmental
review process prior to project implementation to asses potential flood risk and options for flood
protection. None of the cost estimates provided in Table 1-3 include flood proofing or major grading

changes associated with flood protection.

No stakeholder outreach has been completed to-date, but this draft Study will be shared with the
following stakeholders: District’s Board of Directors, SMMW(C’s Board of Directors, Avila Beach Golf
Course, the County of San Luis Obispo, Port San Luis, and Avila Valley Mutual Water Company.

The new regional WRRF would produce disinfected tertiary recycled water for landscape irrigation. As
described in Section 7, the regional alternatives evaluated in this Study include membrane bioreactor
(MBR) and UV disinfection facilities. It should be noted that though these technologies have been
selected as a basis for comparison, there are other tertiary treatment options that may be a better fit for
a regional plant in the Avila Valley. These options should be evaluated in detail during project planning
and design. Regardless, a tertiary facility is expected to be more reliable than the current treatment
plants, and will meet and/or exceed the needs of the users. The design flow criteria for the new regional
WRRF are summarized in Table 1-4.

Table 1-4. Preliminary Design Criteria

Parameter B A Value

Combined Average Annual Flow Million gallons per day (MGD) 0.21
Combined Maximum Daily Flow MGD 0.67
Combined Max Day Peaking Factor Multiplier 3.2

If this project moves forward to implementation, it can be expected to begin with user commitments in
2019. Table 1-5 shows the preliminary implementation schedule in general terms because the start date
is unclear at this point. It is anticipated that recycled water use commitments will be gathered prior to
moving forward with project design. After permitting is completed, recycled water use agreements can
be obtained.

—WSC °

WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC.



Draft 1. Executive Summary
Recycled Water Facilities Planning Study 7/27/2017

Table 1-5. Preliminary Implementation Schedule

Implementation Schedule YEAR
Yearl | Year2 | Year3 [ Year4 | Year5 | Year6

Preferred Project Tasks and Milestones

Set up governance and obtain recycled water use commitments

from recycled water users

Design, CEQA, and permitting for new regional treatment facility

Construction of new facility and conveyance pipeline

Recycled water use agreements

Deliver water to regional users ¢

Table 1-6 shows the implementation costs for the preferred alternative escalated 4.25 years to the mid-
point of construction at 3% inflation, which can be expected to be April 2023 if the project begins in
January 2019.

Table 1-6. Implementation Cost Estimate

SRR T e
$32,760,000

51,480,000

51,890,000

$3,370,000

$62,470,000

170

$13,500

—WSC ?

WATER SysTEmMs CONSULTING, INC.






